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DTRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,

JffiA, Rural Housing & Moftgage Finance Limited

Ahmedabad,

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTSs

your Directors have pleasure to present the Twelfth (1lh) Annual Report of your Company

together with the Audited statement of Accounts for the year ended on March 31, 2019.

The company,s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year's figures

is given hereunder:

(Amount in Rs')

March 31, 2018March 31, 2019PartlculatE
25,12,81,79630,67,26,984Interest Income

t,2t,73,7511,73,80,480
Income from Operations & Other Sources

26,r4,55,54732,41,O7,468Total Income
230,468,801278,549,206Total ExPenditur€

32,986,74645,558,262
Profit before Depreciation and Taxes

43,78,99431,66,353
Depreciation and Amortization

2,86,07,7524,23,91',9O9
Profit before Taxes

85,40,0771,58,72,6t8
Provision for Taxauon (including Deferred Tax)

2,OO,67,6?52,65,19,29rProfit after Taxes
62,798,56070,236,234

Profit brought forward from previous year

8,28,66,2359,57,s5,525Profit avallable for ApPrcPriation

Aporopriatlons

78,30,0001,02,70,000Reserves u/s. 29-C of the NHB Act, 1987 and Specia

Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Ad, 1961

40,18,45836,32,838
Proposed Dividend (including Interim dividend)

7,56,376
Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed Dividend

7,8r,543

7.lJ2,36,2348,20,96,31r
Surplus Balance Carried to Balance Sheet

Annual Report 20f&2019
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The portfolio at the end of the year 2O1B-19 was INR 27O.24 Cr., showing an increase of 32'90o/o

as compared to the previous year. The quality of the portfolio remained robust during the period

which has always remained the main plank of the company. The stage III assets net of provisions

of the company were maintained at 0.260/o as compared to the previous year 2017-18. Thls

performance is withstanding the various macro headwinds during the year'

During the year under review the Interest Income of the Company is INR 30.67 Cr' in comparison

to the previous year income of INR 25.13 Cr. showing an upward trend of 22,060/o' Further, the

total income of the Company has also increased at around 23.02o/o in comparison to the previous

Financial Year.

1

i

I

The profit after taxes stands uP to INR 2.55 Cr. during the year compared to the profits of INR

during the Previous Year which shows an increase of 32'L5o/o profits compared to the

Previous Year.

The company continues to pursue the path of sustainable development and continues to remain

confident to gain momentum in the coming years, given the company's efforts at the ground level'

accompanied by the encouraging responie and the activity of the developers in the affordable

housing space. The company;s initiutiuu to fund the affordable housing projects is expected to

yield diesired results in buiiding up the quality portfolio. Numbers of new housing finance

companies have entered the arena this year also; however the market size is too huge as the

supply in the affiordable housing space is increasing remarkably which creates an opportunity for

various well managed Housing Finance Institutions to co-exist'

Thegovernmentinitiativeofhousingforallaccompaniedbyprovidingsubsidyisalsothestepin
the right direction for the development of the sector'

Thecompanyiscommiftedtodeliverqualitycredittothissectorandisonthemission:

"To be a very signitiant Provider of efficient financial serui@s in the housing loan

segment, thereby being the catalYst in realizing the dreams of the millions of

esrycialtY among the LfG and MfG class in semi urban and rural areas and

cr@te value on a verY latge sale."

Mortgagc !'inancc l,imitetl
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The Company continues to focus on creaung quality assets, aware of the fact that, extending loans

to the inflrmal and the rural class of the society is in its nascent stage and hence it has its own set

of challenges, which is being dealt very carefully and efficiently' As stated earlier, the Board has

taken a conscious decision to build up the portfolio slowly during the initial years of operations and

concentratemoreonunderstandingthemarketweserveandsettingthesuitablecreditevaluation
process, ,,Extending credit where it i, dr"," remains the basic plank and putting the same into

practice requires ibundance of perseverance and patience. The key positive of the same ls

.fr.A! Rural Horrsing &
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building up of quality assets.

The rural initiative continues to remain one of the major focuses of the Company. The company

believes and practices the policy of adapting to the ground level realities as fast as possible. Rural

housing finance is undoubtedly a huge market, characterized by number of challenges ranging

from financial literacy to acceptable titles of the property. However we are confident of finding

sustainable solutions to each of the challenges, we face during our journey'

we firmly believe that once the business cycle is set, regular business may be expected from all

the areas of operations. The company follows the business model of serving such villages through

dedicated relationship olTicers who are responsible to offer them customized housing financing

solution, Based on the experience of these villages necessary change in the business model will be

implemented to e)Qlore the latent potential of the segment'

I

I

The current year also sharpened our learning curve to a considerable extent. The feedback from

the customers, relationship officers and the vigilant analysis of the credit team enabled us to frame

a well-articulated credit screens which we very firmly believe will be a major lever to serve the

targeted segment effectively. The effectiveness of the credit screen is reflected in the quality of the

portfolio. The company is now focusing to improve its turnaround time for disbursing the loans

without compromising with the quality of credit. Various efforts are undertaken such as training

the relationship officers, the branch credit officers, and the credit team at the central processing

unit.

Adequate care is taken for providing efficient post disbursement services to the customers'

Various educative programs organized by NHB (National Housing Bank) gives us in depth insight of

the housing finance activities, process, appraisal techniques and the focus of the government in

this sector,

TheNetownedFundofthecompanyasonMarch3l,20lgincreasedtoRs'45'44cr'duetothe
contiibution of additional caPital of Rs. 9 cr. by MAS Financial services Ltd' and Rs' 2 cr' by the

promotersinadditiontotheoptionexercisedbythepromoterstoconvertoCPSintoEquity
amounting of Rs.4 Cr. l,1umbei of institutions have shown keen interest in participating in the

future debt and the capital requirement of the company. company is quite optimistic to tie up thelr

financial requirement for the year 2019-20'

$$P Rural Housing & Mortgage
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MRHMFL continues to comply with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting standards,

capital adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, 'Know Your Customer'- (KYC), fair practices

code and capital market exposures. The Company has provided for impairment of loans and

advances as per IND AS 109 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per

the NHB Circular No. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated lune 14, 2018. The

National Housing Bank Act, 1987, empowers NHB to levy a penalty on Housing Finance Companies

for contravention of the Act or any of its provisions. NHB has not levied any penalty on MRHMFL

during the year.

We understand the importance of this very important resource and are always eager to harness

the latent potenuality of our young team. Continuous training and motivational programs play an

important role in their peformance. The Company throughout the year supported its team to

excel. .. -

Your Directors recommend a final dividend at a fixed rate of 89o p.a. to the preference

shareholders amounting to Rs, 31,82,466/- (Rupees Thirty One Lakh Eighty Two Thousand Four

Hundred and Sixty Six Only) and a final dividend at the rate of 0.5olo to the Equity Shareholders

amounting to Rs, 10,61,320.20/- (Rupees Ten Lakh Sixty One Thousand Three Hundred Twenty

and Twenty Paise Only) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019.

An amount of Rs.2,L8,2O7l- would be paid as dividend distribution tax on the dividend on Equity

Shares and an amount of Rs. 6,54,315/- would be paid as dividend distribution tax on the dividend

on Preference Shares.

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS')

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with the transition date of 1 April 2017. Apart from this

there,have been no material changes and commitments that would affect financial position of the

Company from the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements

relate and the date of the Directors Report.

$.A! Rural Housing & Mortgagc Financc Limiled
Annrral RcPort 2018-2019
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In terms of the transitional provisions applicable to Statutory Auditors under the Companies Act,

2013, Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113428W), Ahmedabad

were appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years in the 10th

Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on June 2,2017.

Furthet as per provisions of Section 139(1) of the Act, the appointment Rajpara Associates,

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113428W), Ahmedabad is subject to ratification by

Members at every AGM, The certificate of eligibility under applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, ,2013 and corresponding Rules framed thereunder was furnished by them towards

appointment of a 5 (Five) year term.

As required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, their appointment should be ratified by

members each year at the AGM. Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.

113428W), Ahmedabad has confirmed that ratification of their appointment, if made at the

ensuing AGM, shall be in accordance with the conditions specified in the Act. Accordingly, requisite

resolution forms part of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretariat Audit Report are not applicable to the

Company,

The Company is Housing Finance Company registered with NHB not accepting public deposits and

is prohibited from accepting public deposits and therefore the Company has not accepted deposits

from public during the year under review.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of Annual

Return for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 in Form MGI-9 made under the provisions of

92(3) of the Act form part of the Board's Report as Annexute A (MGT-9).

$.{p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 201&2019
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Aftendance
at the AGM

held on
27 l06l20ta

* Excluding Directo6hip of 4{AF Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited;

We believe that our Board needs to have an appropriate mix of Executive and Independent

Directors to maintain its independence, and separate its functions of governance and

management. Further, Mrs. Darshana Pandya, Director & Chief Operating Officer of the Company,

is designated as Woman Director for the Company in terms of second proviso to the Section 149

(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, The Composition of Board fulfills the regulatory requirements.

2fl"Ap Rural Ilousing & IVlorlgagc l-inancc Lintitctl
Annual Rcport Z0l 8-2019

Yes

Name of the
Dircctor / Key

Managerial
Personnel

No. of other
Directorships*

No, of Board
Meetings
attended
during

2018-2019
Whole-time Darectors

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi

Chairman & Managing

Director

DIN: 00044852

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi

Whole-time Director &
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00187086

3 7 Yes

4 7 Yes

Yes

Mrs. Darshana Pandya

Director & Chief

Operating Officer
DIN: 07610402

1 7

Independent Directors

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran

Independent Director
DIN: 00393346

Mr. Chetan Shah

Independent Director
DIN: 02213542

3 7 Yes

1 6 Yes

Mr. Subir Nag

Independent Director
DIN: 02169915

Nil 2 No

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr: Darshil

Hiranandani

Company Secretary

Nil 6
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During the year under review on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee (NRC), Mr. Darshil Hiranandani, a Qualified Company Secretary was appointed as the

Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f' May 2,20L8.

During the year, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 14, 2019, on the

recommendations of the NRC and subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing General

Meeting, re-appointed Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi (DIN: 00044852) as the Managing Director of the

Company for a period of Five years w,e.f. April 1, 2019'

During the year, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 14, 2019, on the

recommendations of the NRC and subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing General

Meeting, re-appointed Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi (DIN: 00187086) as the Whole-time Director of the

Company for a period of Five years w.e.f. April 1, 2019.

During the year, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 14, 2019, on the

recommendations of the NRC and subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing General

Meeting, re-appointed Mr: Balabhaskaran (DIN: 00393346) as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of Five years w.e.f. April 1, 2019 whose earlier term as Independent Director

Expired on March 31, 2019.

During the year, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 14, 2019, on the

recommendations of the NRC and subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing General

Meeting, re-appointed Mr. Chetan R. Shah (DIN: 02213542) as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of Five years w.e.f. April 1, 2019 whose earlier term as Independent Director

Expired on March 31, 2019,

Necessary resolutions for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors were passed in the

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting on Monday, March 18, 2019.

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being

appointed as Directors in terms of section 164 & 165 of the Companies Act, 2013.

.]

In accordance with the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the applicable

provisions of Articles of Association, Mrs. Darshana Pandya, Director of the Company is eligible to

retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-

appointment.

$.Al Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annual Report 2018-2019
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The Board of Directors in its meeting held April 24, 2019, on the recommendations of the

Nomination and Remunemtion Committee (NRC), further recommends to the members of the

Company to re-appointment of Mrs. Darshana Pandya (DIN: 076LO402), as director liable to retire

by rotation.

o

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter to review the Quarterly Results

and other items on the agenda, and also on the occasion of Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Additional Board meetings are convened to discuss and decide on various business policies,

strategies and other businesses. The Company Secretary drafu the Agenda for each meetlng,

along with explanatory notes, in consultation with the Directors, and distributes these in advance

to the Directors.

The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as

provided in section 173 of the Act'

Every Board Member can suggest the inclusion of additional items in the agenda'

The,Company had 7 Board Meetings during the financial year under review'

Number of Directors
attended

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Board'

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company has

three Non-Promoter Independent Directors in line with the Companies Act, 2013' The Company

has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 149 (7) of the

Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of

Sr. No. Date of Meeting
Total Number of

Directors as on the
date of Meeting

1

2.

16-Apr-18 6 6

02-May-18 6 4

3 20-Aug-18 5

6

5

4. 18-Oct-18

5. 21-Jan-19

5

6 5

14-Mar-19 6 6

57. 30-Mar-19 6

Cfi$F Rural Tlousing & lUorlgegc Financc Limitcd
Annual RcPort 201 8-2019
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the Companies Act, 2013.

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the board, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee formulated the methodology and criteria to evaluate the performance of the board and

each director. The evaluation of the performance of the board ls based on the approved criteria

such as the board composition, strategic planning, role of the Chairman, non-executive directors

and other senior management, assessment of the timeliness and quality of the flow of information

by the Company to the board and adherence to compliance and other regulatory issues.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March t4, 2Ol9 to review the

performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole.

Our Audit Committee comprised of 3 Directors as on March 31, 2019:

n

a, Mn Bala Bhaskaran

b. Mr. Chetan Shah

c. Mr. Mukesh Gandhi

- Chairman
- Member
- Member

Mr, Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Commiftee.

The composition of committee inter alia meets with the requirement of Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The scope of Audit committee is enhanced in accordance with the companies Act, 2013.

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and overseas through the Committee, the

genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also

provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their

concerns. The Company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee

on reporting issues concerning the interests of co employees and the Company. The board has

approved a policy for vigil mechanism which has been hosted on the website of the Company. The

weblink for the same is www.mrhmfl.co.in

$"{B Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 201&20f9
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The Company had 4 Audit Committee Meetings during the Financial Year under review:

Sr. No, Date of Meeting
Total Number of

Members as on the
date of Meeting

1 02-May-18 3

2. 20-Aug-18 3

Number of Members
attended

2

3

33 18-Oct-18 3

4 21-Jan-19 3 3

n

The Company constituted its Remuneration Committee on 6s Octobet 2011 and the nomenclature

of the Remuneration Committee was changed to "Nomination and Remuneration Committee" on

20s February 2015 pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 20L4 by way of resolution passed in

accordance with, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of 3 Directors as on March 3f , 2019:

a. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran - Chairman

b, Mr. Chetan Shah - Member

c. Mr, Subir Nag - Member

Mr, Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee.

The Company had 2 Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings during the Financial Year

under review:

Sr. No. Date of Meeting
Total Number of

Members as on the
date of Meeting

1. 02-May-18 3

2. 14-Mar-19 3

Number of Members
attended

2

3

The composition of committee inter alia meets with the requirement of section 178 of the

Companies Act, 2013, Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to nonexecutive directors are

provided under the Nomination and Remuneration Poliry of the Company which is hosted on the

website of the Company viz; www.mrhmfl.co.in

flAF Rr.;l tiousing & Mortgagc Financc Limited
Annual Rcport 201 8-2019
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The role and responsibilities, Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration

including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and

other related matters are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a truc and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the

Company for the year under review.

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively'

(f) The directors havb devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such system are adequate and operating effectively.

D

The Company has received declarations from each Independent Director of the Company under

section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as

prescribed under sub section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company being a Housing Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank with the

principal business, inter alia, of Housing Finance, the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section

(1) are not applicable tO it. However, there are no investments made during the year in any

Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

hence no particulars thereof as envisaged under Section 134(3Xg) are covered in this Report.

S.{p Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 201&2019
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The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188

during the year are furnished in Annexurc B (Form AOC-2) and is attached to the repoft.

During the year under review Rs, \,O2,7O,OOO|- transferred to reserve fund under Section 29-C of

NHB Act, 1987 & Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act. 1961'

During the year under review, there was no Change in the Authorised Share Capital of the

Company.

The Authoised Share Capital as on March 31, 2019 was:

Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thifi crores only) divided into 3,00,00,000 (Three crores) shares of

Rs. 1Or each, which is further divided as Rs. 23,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Three crores only)

divided into 2,30,00,000 [Two Crores Thirty Lakh] Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and Rs.

200,00,000/- [Rupees seven crores only] divided into 70,00,000 [seventy Lakh] Preference

Shares of Rs. 10/- each

2. EAID ULEURE,BPTIAL:

During the year under review, the Company convefted its 40,00,000 8o/o Optionally Convertible

Preference Shares to 851,061 Equity Shares of the Company on March 30, 2019 and allotted the

same to the existing Preference Shareholders in the following proportion:

8,51,061

Further the Company issued 2,340,423 Equity Shares to MAS Financial Services Limited, Mr'

Kamlesh C. Gandhi and Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi on Private Placement Basis in the following

proportion:

- 
1sAri R;;i ffou"ing * frrottgagc l'inance Limitcd
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Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder No. of OC No. of Equity Shares allotted
10,00,000 212,165

20,00,000 425,53r
10,00,000 2t2,765

1 Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi

2. Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi

3. Mrs. Shweta K, Gandhi

Total 40,00,000
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Sr. No, Name of the Allottee No. of Shares Allotted

Mr. lGmlesh C. Gandhi 2r2,765

Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi 212,765

MAS Financial Services Limited 1,914,893

1

2.

3

Total 2,340,423

The Paid Up Share Capital as on March 31, 2019 was:

Rs.2L,22,64,040 /- (Rupees Twenty One Crore Twenty Two Lakh Sixty Four Thousand and Forty

Only) divided intr: 2,L2,26,404 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Conservataon of Energy and Technology Absorption:

Sinca-the Company is operating in service sector, the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the

COmpanies Act, 2013 regarding conservation of energy and Technology Absorption are not

applicable,

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

The Company has no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo.

The companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 re-

emphasizes the need for an effective Internal Financial Control system in the Company which

should be adequate and shall operate effectively. The Company has devised proper system of

internal financial control which is commensurate with size and nature of Business. Even, the Board

has appointed M/s. MAAK & Associates, Chartered Accountants as an Internal Auditor of the

Company pu6uant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to ensure

proper internal financial control.

COmpany's Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk assessment and

mitigation, The Company has a risk management policy approved by the Board for identifying,

evaluating, monitoring and minimizing the identifiable risks in the organization. The Company also

has Asset Liabilify Management Committee (ALCO) and Audit Committee for overseeing the risk

management measures.

$$,p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 2018-20f 9
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The Company does not have any Subsidiary Joint Venture and Associate Company.

The Company has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview of the

limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

A detailed analysis of your Company's performance is discussed in the Management Discussion and

Analysis RepoG which forms part of this Annual Report.

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant

to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013.

The provision of Application of Cost Record in Compliance of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 &

in respect of section 148(1) of the companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed

in section 134(3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent the

transactions took place on those items during the year.

Your Directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following

items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a. Details of Annual Repoft on Corporate Social Responsibility as Company is not falling within the

criteria as prescribed u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

c. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any

scheme save and ESOS;

d, No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which

impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future

$.Ap Rural I{ousing & Mortgagc Financc l,imitcd
Annual RcPort 201 8-2019
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YOur Directors singerely express their deep appreciation to employees at all levels, bankers,

customers and shareholders for their sustained support and co-operatlon and hope that the same

will continue in future.

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

SAF RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FI CE LIMTTED

I

t April24,2019
: Ahmedabad
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*Real estate and construction together, is the second largest employment provider in the

country next to agriculture. It employed over 40 million workforce in 2013, and as per

projections is slated to employ over 67 million workforce by 2022. The sector is expected to

generate about three million jobs annually. Nearly 90o/o of the workforce employed in the real

estate and construction sector are engaged in construction of buildings. The remaining 107o

workforce is involved in building completion, finishlng, electrical, plumbing, other installation

services, demolition and site preparation.

The share of real estate sector which includes ownership of dwellings accounted for 7.7o/o in

India's overall Gross Value Added (GVA) in 2015-16. The growth of this sector decelerated in

the last three years from 7.5o/o in 2OL3-L4 to 4.4o/o in 2015-16. This was mainly due to groMh

of the ownership of dwelling segment decelerating from 7.lo/o in 2013-14 to 3.2o/o in 2015-16.

As per the National Real Estate Development Council (NAREDCO), residential launches across

top 14 cities in India during Ht 20t7 fell to the lowest in past five years to about 58,000 units.

Similarly, new residential sales, fell to five years low of about 1,01,850 units during this period.

Despite the slowdown in residential launches, the strength of the Indian economy and

favourable demographics, coupled with introduction of several growth oriented reforms are

aiding the real estate sector to attract higher investments. Private equity investments in the

real estate sector have increased from US$ 0.9 billion in 2013 to over US$ 5.9 billion in 2016,

recording more than six fold jump during this period.

* Economic Suruey 2017-18

^The Union Budget 2018-19 continued its push for the real estate sector and in the affordable

housing space in particular by announcing following measures:

1. Establishment of a dedicated Affordable Housing Fund in National Housing Bank, financed

from priority sector lending shortfall and fully serviced bonds authorized by the Government

of India.

2, Allocation of Rs. 6,505 crore has been provided for PMAY(U) as against Rs. 6,043 crore in

2OL7-L8, including allocations for CLSS. Additionally, Internal and Extra Budgetary

Resources of Rs, 25,000 crore under PMAY(U) have been made available for 2018-19.

3. Allocation of Rs, 21,000 crore has been provided for PMAY(G) as against Rs. 23,000 crore

in 2017-18. The total resource requirement is projected at Rs. 33,000 crore, comprising of

Rs. 21,000 crore of Gross Budgetary Support and Rs. 12,000 crore of Extra Budgetary

$"Ap Rural Housing & Mortgagc Finance Limitcd
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Resources.

The Government and market regulators have been taking necessary measures for

development of monetizing vehicles like Infrastructure Investment Trust (InvIT) and Real

Estate Investment Trust (REffs) in India. SEBI in fubruary 2017 notified norms allowing

mutual funds to make investments in such entities. This move is aimed at boosting

investor's interest in such alternative investments.

The RBI has raised housing loan limit for eligibility under priority sector lending (PSL) from

Rs, 28 lakh to Rs, 35 lakh in metropolitan centres, and from Rs' 20 lakh to Rs' 25 lakh in

other centres. The ceiling on cost of eligible dwelling units has also been revised from Rs.

35 lakh to Rs,45 lakh in metropolitan areas and from Rs. 25 lakh to Rs. 30 lakh in other
- areas, The limits were revised in order to bring convergence between PSL guidelines for

housing loans and the affordable housing scheme under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana

(PMAn.

^Reference:
i. Union Budget 2018-19
ii. RBI Circular on Priority Sector Lending - Targets and Classification dated June 19, 2018.

According to "Wortd Urbanization Prospects - The 2018 Revision" by the Population Division of

the UN Depaftment of Economic and Social Affairs (UN DESA), the future increases in the size

of the world's urban population are expected to be highly concentrated in just a few countries.

By 2050, it is projected that India will have added 416 million urban dwellers compared to 255

million in China,

The urban o<pansion in India will happen at a speed quite unlike anything the country or the

world has seen before. While it took nearly 40 years (from 1971 to 2008) for India! urban

population to rise by nearly 230 million; it will take only half that time to add the next 250

million.#

India's urban population is estimated to have grown at a CAGR of 2.8o/o over 2001-2011,

resulting in an increase in the urbanization rate from 27.8o/o to 31.2olo. The surge in urban

population was supported by an increase in million plus cities. The number of urban

agglomerations with more than 1 million population increased from 35 in 2001 to 53 in 2011.

The growth of urbanization at such unprecedented level poses the challenge of meeting the

increasing demand for affordable housing in cities. **

One of the constraints in meeting the increasing demand for affordable housing is the high cost

of land. Other challenges include availability of finance to developers/builders towards land and

absence of clear title which acts as deterrent for participation by financial institutions and real

estate developers in new as well as redevelopment projects of real estate.

S$p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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In order to create a self-sustaining market to address the challenge of land availability and its

high cost, the Central Government on September 2I, 2077 announced a new PPP (Public

Private Partnership) Policy for Affordable Housing. The fundamental strategy underlying Public

Private Partnerships as an implementation strategy for affordable housing is to combine the

strengths of the private sector with those of the public sector in order to overcome challenges

faced by affordable housing and to achieve superior outcomes. The B PPP models for

promoting affordable housing includes six with private investments on government lands while

remaining 2 models involves private investments on private lands.

The new regulations and policy changes including the roll out of RERA and GST will help the

industry become more organized, transparent, and accountable which will boost buyer

sentiment in both residential and commercial segments.

# Mc Kinsey Global Institute (MGI) Report (April 2010)
** The Census of India, 2011

The market scenario post IL&FS event:

The event was triggered by the fundamental lapse on the pad of IL&FS as well as on the part

of 
'the 

lende6 who opted to look the other way on the fundamental issues of ALM and

corporate governance, which should be ideally focused upon.

o

o

o

IL&FS and its subsidiaries have been defaulting on its several debt-obligations since

August. IL&FS'borowings from banks and financial institutions adds to nearly Rs.

63,000 crore as per the balance sheet of 2017-2018, according to the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs (MCA);

@@Banks are the major resource avenue for NBFCs. After defaults by IL&FS, both

public sector and private sector banks almost stopped lending to NBFCs and

housing finance companies (HFCs), adding to worries ahead of the festive season of

Deepawali. An asset-liability mismatch in the operations of NBFCs such as IL&FS is a

fundamental issue, which means that these firms raise capital from the markets for

3-5 years and lend for longer tenures - 10-15 years. Now, defaults in such a

scenario kept the potential investors away from the debt instruments of companies

in the space;

On the other hand, when the interest rates were rising, margins of NBFCs came

under pressure and raising capital became tough. According to banks started

cutting exposure to NBFCS since April 2018 in the wake of the huge bad loan, which

led to a 4.60lo drop in their exposure to the sector.

RBI and government were very rightly cognizant of the fact that NBFCs and HFCs

plays a pivotal role in the last mile delivery of credit. Hence the problem of NBFCs

which was due to a panic reaction by the lenders leading to the liquidi$ crunch was

effectively addressed by both the government and the RBI. The RBI in its February

2019 policy had announced various measures in order to ensure flexible credit

$.Al Rural llousing & N{or(gagc ltinance Limited
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facility to NBFCS.

With a view to facilitate flow of credit to well-rated NBFCs, it was decided that rated

exposures of bank to all NBFCs, excluding Core Investment Companies (CICs),

would be risk-weighted as per the ratings assigned by the accredited rating

agencies, in a manner similar to that for corporates. Exposures to CICs will continue

to be risk-weighted at 1000/o," RBI said;

With this, now a bank would decide on loan to NBFCs depending upon their ratings.

When IL&FS crisis hit headlines, major NBFCs were trapped, in fact even SEBI

unveiled norms which ensured a healthy rating to NBFC from agencies;

@ Source zee Business News dated Thu, Feb 0Z 2019

o

depend-on-ratinos-84707)

@@ Source Financial Express dated November 2, 2018

indias-nbft/1370224/)

We, MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited C'MRHMF$ are a housing finance

company registered with National housing Bank. MRHMFL has an endeavor to realize the

dream of millions of Indian House Holds to "OWN A HOME". The focus is to serve the middle

income segment of the society, which we reckon as one of the key drivers of the housing

industry. This segment is largely characterized by the informal but credit worthy class. This

Class is spread across the length and breadth of the country be it urban, semi-urban or rural.

Extending "Credit where it is due" remains the main plank, as far as credit delivery is

concerned in consistent with the endeavor of the group since the last two decades of building

quality assets,

Mission of MRHMFL is to be a very significant provider of efficient financial services in the

housing loan segment, thereby being a catalyst in realizing the dreams of the millions of

hOuSeholdS, especially among the LIG and MIG class in semi urban and rural areas and create

value on a very large scale.

>. Focusing on fundamentals - A key for navigating through tough times:

over the years we have learnt, experienced and practiced: "focusing on Fundamentals."

This has enabled us to navigate through various crisis, may be liability/asset led.

Registering a growth of 30o/o+ even during this trying time is the testimony to our focus on

fundamentals, On the liability side, utmost care is taken on maintaining the right asset-

liability mix while focusing on creating quality assets leading to very negligible credit losses.

. This has helped the company to grow profitably and steadily but solidly. This according to

us lays a very strong foundation for future scalability. It is worth mentioning that this type

of is hiqhlv respected bv our lenders and investors'

$.Ap Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limited
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MRHMFL3 major focus has been to provide home loans to individuals and families for

purchase, construction and extension and renovation. MRHMFL provides loans to individuals

who are salaried, self-employed professionals, self- employed non-professionals and

agriculturist. MRHMFL also provides construction finance to developers who are developing

housing projects and commercial properties on the basis of detailed evaluation of the project.

Apart from home loans MRHMFL provides loan for purchase, construction of commercial

property on non-agriculturdl land situated within municipal/local development authority llmits.

MRHMFL also offers home loans under the Rural Housing Fund (RHF) scheme wherein loans

are given in rural areas for following categories viz, backward classes or Minority Community or

Women owners or families having annual household income less than Rs. 3 lakh. Since NHB

offers refinance at concessional rate of interest under the scheme, the ultimate rate of interest

applicable on loans to beneficiaries is regulated with a cap on the spread.

MRHMFL has also signed an MOU with the NHB which is the Central Nodal Agency under the

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) for the Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) for both

EWS/UG categories. The subsidy received from the Government through the Central Nodal

Agency under this scheme, is being passed on to the beneficiaries by way of prepayment with

a reduction in their instalments.

To ensure a deeper geographic reach, MRHMFL has been sourcing retail business through third

party channels by appointment of MRHMFL Referral Associates. Referral Associates only source

loans while MRHMFL retains control over the credit, legal and technical appralsals.

MRHMFL is operating in four states - Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Rajasthan.

MRHMFL has 69 offices across these four states.

MRHMFL conducts outreach programmes from its retail olfices to potential taluka places. The

outreach marketing programme also serves as collection centre for collecting instalments

besides providing services of enquiry handling and file opening.

MRHMFL disbursed Rs. 128,58 Crores during the year as against Rs. 78.49 Crores in the

previous year. MRHMFL disbursed loans of Rs. 81.23 Crores (previous year Rs. 31.70 Crores)

for home purchase and renovation.

MRHMFL disbursed home loans to 596 families (previous year 451 families) and the average

$.Ap Rural Housing & Morlgagc l'inancc Limitc(l
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home loan to individuals was maintained at Rs. 0.07 Crores.

MRHMFL disbursed loans of Rs. 7.61 Crores (previous year Rs. 5.38 Crores) for purchase of

Non Residential Property/Commercial Property and Rs.39.74 Crores (previous year Rs.41.41

Crores) to developers,

t77.l'Tl

The loan approval process at MRHMFL is decentralized with varying approval limits. Approvals

of lending proposals are carried out by retail sanctioning committees/persons up to the limits

delegated.

Approvals beyond cetain limits are referred to the Committee of Management. Larger

proposals, as appropriate, are referred to the committee of directors, set up by the Board.

During the year, MRHMFL3 total outstanding loans increased to Rs. 270.24 Crores from Rs.

203.34 Crores and registered a growth of 32.90o/o.

MRHMFUS total outstanding home loans to individuals of Rs. 187.93 crores constitute 69.54olo

of the total outstanding loans. Loans to individuals for non-residential premises (NRP) of Rs.

16.78 Crores constituted 6.2Lo/o of the total outstanding loans. The outstanding loans to

developers of Rs. 65.53 Crore constituted 24.25o/o of the total outstanding loans.

The Company has recognised impairment loss on loans based on the ECL model as required by

Ind AS 109. Accordingly, MRHMFL has made a provision for impairment of Rs. 0'53 Crore

towards Stage I loans and Rs. 0.46 Crore towards Stage II loans.

MRHMFL's Sbge III loan assets as at March 31, 2019 were Rs. 0.97 Crores on which MRHMFL

has made a provision of Rs. 0.27 Crores. . MRHMFL therefore carries a total provision of Rs.

1,25 Crores on its total assets as per IND AS 109.

MRHMFL has complied with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting guidelines,

prudential norms for capital adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, Know Your

Customer (l(YC) guidelines and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Standards, Fair Practices Code,

grievanCe redressal mechanism, recovery of dues. The Company has provided for impairment

of loans and advances as per IND AS 109 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 and as per the NHB Circular No. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/20u-18 dated June

14, 2018.

S.{p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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MRHMFLT total borrowings as at March 31, 2019 of Rs. 254.60 Crores were within the

permissible limit of NHB Directions.

MRHMFLT CAR as at March 31, 2019 was 28.40olo as against NHBt prescribed limit of 12ol0.

The Capital Adequacy on account of ller I Capital was 27.680/o while the Capital Adequacy on

account of the Tler II Capital was 0.72o/o.

Risk Management is the process by which the company identifies, measures, monitors and

controls its risk exposure in order to ensure that risks are within the tolerance level set by the

company and are clearly understood at relevant levels across the Company.

Asset Liability Management Committee IALCO]

For management of Market Risl! the Board has constituted the Asset Liability Management

Committee (ALCO), It functions on the basis of a policy detaillng the objectives & scope of

Asset Liability Management in the company, duly approved by the Board. The role of ALCO is

to:

a. Review at periodic intervals the Liquidity Risk through Structural Liquidity and Dynamic

Liquidity, Interest Rate Risk sensitivity,

b, Review the pricing of various products of the company.

c, Evaluate new business products, any variants of the existing products or any cost cutting

measure, with particular focus on the pricing aspects, and make suitable recommendations

to the company.

Credit Risk Management

For management of credit ris( the board has constituted Credit Policy. Operational team

functions on the basis of a policy detailing the objective and scope' The company has adopted

mechanism of categorization of borrowers in different categories on the basis of their pronle

and risk attached.

The company has recognized following risk mitigants:

Adjusting the cost of credit according to the credit strength of the borrower.

Credit tightening, or reducing the amount of credit available to higher risk applicants;

Diversification or increasing the portfolio mix of borrowers,

Interest rate sensitivity analysis.

$.A$ Rural Ilousing & Morlgagc Financc l,irrtittrl
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Operational Risk is the chances of loss associated with company's operations. Examples of such

loss events are (I) external fraud, (ii) internal fraud, (iii) damage to physical assets, (iv) loss

on account of faulty business practices and procedures, (v) business disruption and system

failures (vi) Employment practices and workplace safety (vii) Execution Delivery and Process

Management etc.

Operational RiSk of the company is overseen by a Director & COO along with internal members

of the company set up for the purpose. Internal control system would be set up led by

Manager Operation which would report to Director & COO. Major discrepancies if any would be

reported to audit committee by Director & COO.

The company has recognized following risk mitigants:

Task Segregation: Effective segregation of tasks and duties reduces internal theft and

risks related to fraud. This prevents one individual from taking advantage of the numerous

aspects of transactions and business processes or practices.

Curtailing complexities in business Processes: Reducing complexity in different

business processes radically mitigates operational risks. Curtailing manual activities and the

number of people and exceptions that rise during the implementation of business processes

is important,

ng olganizationat ethics: Creating a strong ethical compass within the

organization is highly effective in mitigating operational risks management. Organizational

ethics can be reinforced by combining personal values and principles of the workforce with

the ideology of the organization.

The right people for the right job: Having the right people in the right jobs can reduce

issues pertaining to business process execution and skill and technology usage. This also

results in appropriate workforce utilization, adherence to timelines, enhanced quality, and

fewer errors and process breakdowns.

Monitoring and evaluations at regular intervals: Business processes are more

effective with well-designed performance indicators in place. Key Performance Indicators

(KPIS) are critical for timely detection and mitigation of risks, provided they are

continuously monitored and reviewed. This helps to identify discrepancies proactively and

manage them accordingly.

Periodic risk assessment: Periodic assessments of all facets of operational risks bring

more relief to organizational management. It is imperative to be risk-ready by gauging

regulatory obligations, IT assets, skills, competencies, processes and business decisions.

$.{p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
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Look back and learn: Risk incidents and various remedial activities employed in the past

make way for some of the most effective strategies to counter future risks. Previous risk

occurrences help to implementing a stronget proactive operational risk management

framework. It also supports real-time amendments that suit the current operating scenario.

Market Risk

Market risk is the potential loss due to changes in market prices or values. It is also known

as systematic risk or un-diversifiable or volatility risk. This type of risk is both unpredictable

and impossible to completely avoid.

Making adequate Loss provisions to cover expected losses.

Screening alternative courses of action by performing a risk assessment, and enforcing a

threshold criterion for acceptable risk. Alternatives that fail to meet the set criterion are

rejected.

Assessment of potential demands for liquidity during a stressful period rclative to the

potential sources of liquidity.

Expanding the size and number of available sources, for example, the interbank market.

Central Registry

The Government of India has set up the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset

Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under section 21 of the SARFAESI

Act, 2OO2 to have a central database of all mortgages created by lending institutions' The

object of this registry is to compile and maintain data relating to all transactions secured by

mortgages, All Banks & Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) which fall under the purview of
SARFAESI Act are required to register with CERSAI and submit the data in respect of all

properties moftgaged in its favour. The lending institutions are required to pay fees for

uploading the data of mortgage.

Internal Audit and Control

MRHMFL has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to

provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls,

monitoring of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance

with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting. MRHMFL has documented

procedures covering all financial and operating functions.

MRHMFL has robust internal audit programme, where the internal auditors, an independent

firm of chaftered accountants, conduct a risk-based audit with a view to not only test

adherence to laid down policies and procedures but also to suggest improvements in

processes and systems. Their audit program is agreed upon by the Audit Committee.
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Key elements of the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 are:

* Profit before tax grew by 48.18% and Profit after tax grew by 32.L4o/o as against the
previous year.

.:. Current year income tax provision amounted to Rs. 1.12 Crore as compared to Rs. 0.86

Crore in the previous year, The effective income tax rate for the current ycar was 26.510/o

against 30.00o/o in the previous year.
.! Pre-tax return on average assets was L.62o/o in the current year as against 1.42olo in the

previous year, Post-tax return on average asseb was 1.01o/o as against 1olo in the previous

year,

* The Earnings Per Share (Basic) was Rs. 1.26 for the current year against Rs. 0.90 for the

previous year.

Human Resource

Internal audit observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee,

which monitors the implementation of such recommendations.

Statement of Profit and Loss

The Company believes that the quality and dynamism of its human capital has enabled it to

significantly enhance customer experience and stakeholder's value. In order to sustain its
growth the company works relentlessly towards being customer-focused, performance-

driven and ready for the future. The company provides employment and growth

opportunities to more than 223 employees with the human resource strength growing with

the size and operation of the company. The talent management strategy of the Company

strives to deliver its unique talent promise of 'building holistic business leaders' The

enthusiasm of staff members continued to be high in sustaining positive growth of

disbursements and in maintaining healthy recoveries. With the high level of commitment

and loyalty by staff members, MRHMFL is confident to face the challenges of the tougher

market conditions,

Cautionan Statement

The statements made in this repot describing the Company's objectives, estimations,

expectations or projections, outlooks constitute forward-looking statements within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from such

expectations, projections, among others, whether express or implied. The statements are

based on certain assumptions and future events over which the Company has no direct

control. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modiftt and revise any

of the statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.
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ANNEXURE A TO DIRECTORS'REPORT

SA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

FORM NO. MGT-g
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,1

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1 CIN u74900GJ2007P1C05 1383

2 Registrauon Date 2410712007

3 Name of the Company &AF Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

4
Category / Sub-category of the
C-ompany

Company limited by shares

Address of the Registered office &
mntact details

4th Floor, Narayan Chambers,
B/h Patanq Hotel, Ashram Road,

Ahmedabad-380 009.
Ph No. - 079 - 4110 6500 I 733
Website : www.mrhmfl .co.in

E-Mail :darshil hiranandani@mas.co.in

6. Whether listed company No

7.
Name, Address & contact details of the

lGrvy Fintech A^. Ltd

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032
P: +91 40 6716 1602 | M : +91 9870495553

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

U. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OFTHE COMPANYT

(All the business activities contributing 10olo or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be
stated.)

Sr. No. I{ame and Description of main products /
services

NIC Code of the
Product/service

o/o to total turnove. of
the company

1 Activities of Housing Finance 65922 100.000/.

$.4! Rural llorrsing & l\f ortgagc Financc Limitcd
A nnual llcpor-t 2018-2019



ilI. PARTICUALRS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

IV. SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN:

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-Wise Shareholding :

Sr
l{o.

,Hnri
of the

Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate o/o ol
shares

held

Applicable
Section

1

SAF Financial

Services Limited

6, Narayan

Chambers, Ground
Floor, B/h Patang

Hotel, Ashram
Road, Ahmedabad
- 380 009.

16591oGJ 1995P1C026064 Holding 59.67 Section 2(46)

of Companies

Act, 2013.

Category of
Shareholderc

No. of Shares held as on April 1, 2018. No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2019.
olg

change
during

the
year

lrllGlfrcfi:nE Demat Total
olo ol
Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

o/o ol
Total

Shares

(1) Indian

a) Individual / HUF 728/,620 Nil 728/.620 40.39

b) Central Govt.
Or State Govt.

Nfl Nil Nit Ntl

c)
Corporate

Bodies
10750000 Nil 10750000 59.61

d) Bank / FI Nfl Nil Nit Nil

e) Any other Nil Nil Nit Nit

8561211

Nit

12664893

Nit

Nit

Nit

Nit

Nil

8561211 40.33 -0.06

Nil Nit Nit

12664893 59.67 0.05

Nil Nit Nil Nit

Nil Nil Nit Nil

SUB TOTAL: (A)
(1) 18034620 Nit 18034520 100.00 21226t04 Nil 2t226rM 100.00 0.00

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals ,rfll NN Nit Nil Nit

b) Other
Individuals

Nit Nit Nil Nit Nil

c) Bodies Crrp, Nit Nil Nil Nit NiI

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil Nil

Nit Nit

Nit

Nil

NitNil

S.A! Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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d) Bank/FI Nil Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil

e) Any other Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit

SUB TOTAL: (A)
(2) Nil Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil

TOTAL
STIAREHOLDII{G
OF PROMOTER
(A)=
(AX1)+(AX2)

18034520 Nil 18034620 100.00 2t226104 Nil 21226t04 100.00 Nit

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NiI Nil

b) BankYFI Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nit Nit

c) Central govt. Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil t\til Nil Nil

d) State GoW. Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nit NiI

e) venture Capibl
Fund

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit

f) Insurance

Companies
Nil Nit Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nit Nil

s) FUS Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nir Nil Nil

h) Foreign Venture

Gpital Funds
Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nit Nil

i) Others (specify) Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nit

SUB
(BXT):

TOTAL
Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(2) Non Institutions

a)

cbrporates

Bodies
Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil

i) Indian Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nir Nil Nit

ii) Overseas Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders

300 Nit Nit *0.00 300 Nil Nil *0.00 Nil

$.Ap Rural I{ousing & Morlgagc l'inance l,imitcd
Annrral Rcnort 201 8-2019
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holding nominal

share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakhs

ii) Individuals

shareholders
holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs. 1

taktrs

Nit Nil Nit Nit Nit Nit Nit Nit Nit

c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nit Nit NiI Nit

SUB
(BX2):

TOTAL
300 Nit Nil *0.00 300 Nit NiI *0.00 Nit

TOTAL PUBUC
SHAREHOLDI G
(r)=
(BX1)+(BX2)

300 Nil Nil x0.00 300 Nil Nit r0.00 Nit

C. STIARES HELD
BY CUSTODIAN
FOR GDRS &
ADRS

Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nit Nil Nit

GRAT{D TOTAL
(A+B+C) 18034920 Nit 18034920 100 2t22640/. Nil 2L226404 100 Nit

* Insignificant Shareholding.

ii) Share Holding of Promoters:

$.{p Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annual Report 201&20f9

sl
No.

Shareholdels
I{ame

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year Shareholding at the end of the year

o/o change
in

shareholdi
ng during
the year

No, of
shares

olo of
total

shares
of the

comPany

o/o of shares
pledged

encumbered
to total
shares

No. of
shares

o/o of total
sharas
of the

Company

o/o of shares
pledged

encumbered
to total
shares

1
Mr. MulGsh C.

Gandhi
3402310 18.87 Nil 4040606 19.04 Nil 0.t7

z
Mr. Kamlesh C.

Gandhi
2060980 11.43 Nil 2486510 Lt.7 t Nil 0.28

3
Ms. Shweta
Kamlesh Gandhi

r821330 10.1 Nit 2034095 9.58 Nil -0.52

4 M/s. sA, 10750000 59.61 Nit 12664893 59.67 Nil 0.06



'zw
Financial

Services

Limited

iii) Change In Promoters' Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change):

sl
I{o.

Sharcholderc Name
Shareholding at the beginning of

the Year
Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

1

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi No. of Shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

As at 01/04/2018 2060980 11.43 2060980 11.43

Date wise Increase/Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons

for insease /decrease(e.9.
Allotmenvtransfer/bonus/svreat
equity etc):

March 30,2019 - Allotment of 212,765 Equity Shares and Conversion of
10,00,000 OCPS to 212,765 Equity Shares.

As at 3t/03/2019 2486510 Lt.7t 2486510 rt.7 t

2

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi o. of Shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

As at 01/04/2018 3402310 18.87 3402310 18.87

Date wise Inoease/Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during
the year specirying the reasons

br increase /decrease(e,9.
Allotmenvtransfer/bon uysrweat

equity etc):

March 30,2019 - Allotment of 2t2,765 Equity Sharcs and Conversion of
20,00,000 OCPS to 425,531 Equity Shares.

As at 31/03/2019 4040606 19.04 4040606 19.04

3.

Ms, Shweta Gandhi No. of Shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
companY

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

As at 0l/04/2018 1821330 10.1 1821330 10.1

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
PromoteB Shareholding during
the year specifuing the reasons
for increase /decrease(e.9,
Al lotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc):

March 30, 2019 - Conversion of 10,00,000 OCPS to 212,765 Equity Sharcs

As at 31/03/2019 2034095 9.58 203409s 9.58

Jff.A, Financial Services Limited No. of Shares o/o of total No of shares o/o of total4

$.Ap Rural Housing & Mortgagc Financc l,inritcd
Annrral Rcport 2018-2019
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tn_l

shares of
the

company

shares of the
company

As at 01/04/2018 10750000 59.61 r 0750000 59.61

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specirying the reasons
for increase /decrease(e,9.
Allotrnenvtransfer/bon us/siweat

equity etr):

March 30, 2019 - Allotment of 1,914,893 Equity Shares.

As at 31/03/2019 12564893 59.67 r2664893 59.67

iv) Sharcholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters &

* Insignificant Shareholding.

v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP:

$.{B Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annual Report 201&2019

E

I

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding
durihq the year

st
l{o.

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

No. of shares
o/o of total shares
of the company

No, of
shares

o/o of total
shares of the

companY

As at 01/04/2018 100 *0.00

Mr. Saumil Pandya

100 x0.00

wise increase/decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increasddecrease (e.9.
allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No change
I

As at 31/03/2019 100 *0.00 100 *0.00

sl,
No.

Partlculars Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

For Each of tlre Directors & KMP No. of shares
o/o of total shares
of the Company

No, of
shares

o/o of total
shares of the

Company

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi - Chairman & Managing Director

As at 0V04l2018 2060980 11.43 2060980 11.43

Date wise insease/decrease in Share
holding during the year specirying
the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat

March 30, 2019 - Allotment of 212,765 Equity Shares and Conversion of
10,00,000 OCPS to 212,765 Equity Shares.
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equity etc)

As at 31/03/2019 2486510 ll.7t 2486510 11.71

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi - Whole-Time Director & CFO

As at 0U04l2018 3402310 18.87 3402310 18.87

2.

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying
the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

March 30, 2019 - Allotment of 212,765 Equity Sharcs and Convcrsion of
20,00,000 OCPS to 425,531 Equity Shares.

As at 31/03/2019 4040606 19.04 4040605 19.04

Mrs. Darshana Pandya - Director & COO

As at 0uql2018 100 *0.00 100 *0.00

3.

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9, allounenvtransfer/bonus/s,weat
equity etc)

No change

As at 3U03/2019 100 *0.00 100 *0.00

Mr, Chetan Shah - Independent Director

As at 01/04/2018

4

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for inoease/decrease
(e.9. allotmenvtrdnsfer/bonus/sl reat
equity etc)

No change

As at 31/03/2019

Mr. Subir Nag - Independent Director

As at 01/fi/2018

5

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying
the reasons fur increase/decrease
(e,9. allotmenvtransfer/bonuysweat
equrty etc)

No change

As at 31/03/2019

6

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran - Independent Oircctor

As at 01/04/2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share
holding during the year specirying
the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotrnenvtcnsfer/bonus/sweat
equ'ty etc)

As at 31/03/2019

100 ,*0.00 r00 -0.00

No change

100 *0.00 100 *0.00

$$,p Rural Ilousing & Morlgagc l'inance l,imitcd
Annrral Rcporl 2018-2019
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Mn Darshil Hiranandani - Company Secretary

As at 01/04/2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No changc

As at 31/03/2019

* Insig n ifica n t Shareh oldin g.

(Preference Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Preference)

i) Category-Wise Sharcholding:

$.4$ Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 2018-2019

Category of
Shar€holders

No. of Shares held as on April 1, 2018. No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2019

A. PROMOTERS Demat Physical Total

olo ot
Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

olo ol
Total

Shares

olo

change
during

the
year

(1) Indian

Nil Nil Nir Nil Nila) Individual / HUF 4000000 Nil 4000000 100.00

Nil Nil Nit NiI Nil Nil Nil
b) Central Govt.

Or State Govt.
Nil Nit

Bodiesc)
Corporate

Nit Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil NiI Nit Nit

d) Bank / R Nit Nit Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit

e) Any other Nit Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nit

4000000 100.00 Nil Nir Nit Nil Nil
SUB TOTAT: (A)
(1) 4000000 Nil

(2) Foreign

Nil Nil Nil Nila) NRI- Individuals Nil Nil Nit Nil Nit

Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil
Otherb)

Individuals
Nit Nil Nil Nil

c) Bodieg Cgrp.

Nild) Banks/FI Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nite) Any other Nit Nit

NilNil Nit
suB ToTAk (A)
(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit

I
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Nil Nit Nil Nil Nit

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDII{G
OF PROMOTER
(a)=
(AX1)+(AX2)

4000000 Nil 4000000 100.00

B. PUBUC
S]IARE]IOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Muhral Funds Nit Nil Nit Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nir Nit Nilb) BankYFI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit

Nitc) cankal govt. Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit

d) Sbte Govt. Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Venture Gpital
Fund

Nit Nit Nit Nit Nil Nit Nit Nit Nit

f) Insurance

Companies
Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nit

g) RIs Nit Nit Nit Nit Nil Nit Nil Nit Nit

h) Foreign Venture

capibl Funds
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit

i) Others (speciry) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit

TOTATSUB
(BX1): Nit Nit Nit Nit Nil Nit Nil Nit Nat

(2) Non Institutions

Bodiesa)
ojrporates

Nil Nil Nit Nit Nit Nil NiI Nil Nil

i) Indian Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit NiI Nit Nit

ii) Overseas Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nit

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital upto
Rs. I lakhs

Nit Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil Nit

ii) Individuals

shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NiI Nit

$$p Rural Housing & Mortgagc Financc Limitcd
Annual Rcport 201 8-201 9



4,
I

ocess of Rs. 1

lakhs

Nil Nil Nit Nitc) Others (speciry) Nil TflI NilIRI Nil

(BX1)+(BX2)

TOTAL
NiI NitNil

Nit NilNit Nil NitNil

NilNil Nil NitNit
GDRS &

NilNil NitNil Nit Nit

.Ifll Nil Nil

Nilt\m Nit
IIZ
C. SHARES H

SUB
(BX2):

100.00 Nit Nil Nil NiI Nil
GRAI{D TOTAL
(A+B+C) 4000000 Nil 4000000

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

gl Shar€holderr
J{ame

olo ot
total

shares
of the

company

06 of shares
pledged

encumbered
to total
shares

tralr; No, of
shar€s

1
Mr. Mukesh C.

Gandhi

2000000 50.00 Nit

2
Mr. Kamlesh C,

GJndhi

1000000 25.00 Nil

Ms. Shweta
lGmlesh

Gandhi

r000000 25.00 Nil

3

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of
shares

Nit

Nil

olo ol
total

shares
of the

Company

o/o of shares
pledged

encumbered
to total
shares

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil NitNil Nil

ii) Sharc Holding of Promoters:

o/o change in
shareholding

during the
year

Nit

Nit

$.{p Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annuat Report 2018-2019
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iii) Change In Promoters' Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change):

sl,
o.

ShareholdelE Name
Shareholding at the beginning of

the Year
Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi No. of Shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

As at 01/04/2018 1000000 25.00 1000000 25.00

1 Date wise Increase/Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during

the year specirying the reasons

for increase /decrease(e.9.
Allotmenvtransfer/bonus/s-v\reat

equity etc):

Conversion of OCPS to Equity Sharcs

As at 31/03/2019 Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi No, of Shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
companY

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

companY

As at 0U04l2018 2000000 s0.00 2000000 50.00

2 Date wise Inoease/Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during

the year specirylng the reasons

for increase /decrease(e.9.
Allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sl reat

equity etc):

Crnversion of OCPS to Equity Shares

As at 31/03/2019 Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00

Mrs. Shweta Gandhi No, of shares

o/o of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

o/o of total
shares of the

company

As at 01/04/2018 1000000 2s.00 1000000 25.00

3 Date wise Increase/Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during

ihe yedr specifiing the reasons

for increase /decrease(e.9,
Allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equlty etc):

Conversion oF OCPS to Equity Shares

0.00 Nil 0.00As at 31/03/2019 Nil

S.Ap Rural Housing & i\lorlgagc Iinancc l,imitcrl
Annrral Rcporl 2018-201 9
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters &

Holders of GDRS & ADRS)

Not Applicable

v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP:

Particulars Shareholding
Cumulative Shareholding

during the year
st. o/o of total

shares of the
Company

I{o. No. of shares o/o of total shares
of the Company

No. of
sharesFor Each of the Directors & KMP

Mr. lGmlesh Gandhi - Chairman & l4anaging Director

As at 01/04/2018 1000000 25.00 1000000 25.00

1

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrea se

(e. g. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/srreat
equity etc)

Conversion of OCPS to Equity Sharcs

As at 31/03/2019 Nil 0.00 NiI 0.00

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi - Whole-Time Director & CFo

As at 01/04/2018 2000000 50.00 2000000 50.00

2

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9, allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

Conversion of OCPS to Equity Sharcs

As at 3r/03/2019 Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00

Mrs. Darshana Pandya - Director & COO

As at 01/04/2018

3

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No change

As at 31/03/2019

Mr. Chetan Shah - Independent Director

As at 01/04/2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.9. allotrnenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No change

4

$.Ap Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 2018-2019
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As at 3U03/2019

5

Mr. Subir Nag - Independent Director

As at 01/04/2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease

(e.9. allotmenvtrdnsfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No change

As at 31/03/2019

6

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran - Independent Director

As at 0U04l2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease

(e,9, allotmenvtrdnsfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

No change

As at 3U03/2019

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani - Company Secretary

7

As at 0V04/2018

Date wise increase/decrease in Share

holding during the year specirying

the reasons for increase/decrease

(e.9. allotmenvtransfer/bonus/sweat
equ'ty etc)

No change

As at 31/03/2019

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

tndebtedness ofthe Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for

(Amount In Rs.)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

$.A! Rural Housing & Mortgagc Financc Limited
Arnual llcport 201ll-2019

Total IndebtednessDepositsUnsecured LoansPartlculars excluding
Secured Loans

94,19,75873,t3,O52Nit2t,06,706

t,8L,6O,7 4,325t3,57,85,202Nil1,68,02,89,123

Nit

1,80,66.54,567

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

Nil t2,u,72,1507,67,8L,82,4L7

NilNilffit

Total (i+ll+lli)

i. PrincipalAmount

ii. Interest due but
not paid

Interest accrued

but not due
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75 ,O4 ,99 ,393

1,68,7r,O48 2,56,65,73,718

Note: All the deposits are security deposits received from customers for loan.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

(Amount In Rs.)

$.Af Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annuai Report 20f 8-20f 9

n Net Addition /
(Reduction)

86,94,t3,s47 Nit ( 11,89,14,154)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i. PrincipalAmount 2,54,60,41,089 Nil 1,65,75,000 2,56,26,16,089

ii, Interest due but
not paid

Nil NiI Nit Nit

. Interest accrued
but not due

36,61,581 Nil 2,96,048 39,57,629

Total (l+ii+lii) 2,54,97,O2,67O Nit

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Sl o.
of

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi
Chairman &

l,lanaginE Dlrcctor

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi
Whole-time

Director & Chief
Financial Officer

Mrs. Darshana
Pandya -

Director & Chief
Operating

Officer

Gross salary

a. Salary as per

provisions contained

in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax.

1961.

Nil Nil Nil

b. Value of perquisites

u/s l7(2) of the
Income tax Act,

1961

Nil Nil Nit
I

c, Profits in lieu of
salary under sedion
17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961

Nil Nit Nil

2. Stock option Nil Nil Nit

3. Sweat Equity Nit Nil Nil

4.
Crmmission
- as Vo of profit
- others (speciry)

Nit

Nit

Nil

Nil

NiI

Nil

Total Amount

Nil

Nil

Nit

Nit

Nit

Nil

Nil
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5.

Chers, please speciry
(Electricity Charges

Reimbursement)

Nit Nit Nir Nit

B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Amount In Rs.)

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / wTD:

(Amount In Rs.)

1s.Ap Rural Housing & l\'lortgaqc Financc l,imitcd
Annttal licPort 201 8-201 9

Nit titilt'rfl TRITotal A

Name of Directors
Particular1s of Total Amount31 No.

Mr. Bala
Bhaskaran

Mr. Chetan
Shah

Mr. Subir Nag

Independ€nt Directors

a. Fee for attending board

@mmittee meetings

1,35,000 1,10,000 30,000 2,75,000

1 b. Commission Nil Nil Nit Nit

c, Others please speciry. Nil NiI Nil Nil

Total (1) 1,35,000 1,10,000 30,000 2,75,OOO

Other Non Executive Directors

a Fee for attending board

committee meetings

Nit Nil Nil Nil

a b. Crmmission Nit Nil Nil Nil

c, Others, please speciry. Nit Nil Nil Nil

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (B)=(1+2) 1,35,OO0 1,10.000 30,000 2,75,OOO

Sl. No. Particulars of R.emuneration
Key Managerial

Personnel
Total

Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961

c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of

the Income Tax Act, 1961

I

Company Secretary

5,42,324 \ 4) 1)4

2 Stock Option Nil Nit

Nit

Nil

Sweat Equity Nil

C.ommission
- as ryo of profit Nit4.
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- others (speciry) Nit

VU. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

TICI\iII

NiI

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

JmA' RURAT HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

MLESH C. GANDHI
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN: OOO44852

,

: April24,2019
: Ahmedabad

Nil Nil

5,42t324

5. Others, please specify

5,42,324Total

$.Ap Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annual Report 20f 8-20f 9



ANNEXURE B TO DIRECTORS'REPORT

(Punsuant to clause (h) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
ComPanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with

related paties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of Contracts or ArrangemenB or Transactions at Arms length basis for the year ended

March 31, 2019.

MRHMFL is in requirement of the premises,

assets and infrastructure which is available

with MFSL. So, to fully utilise the premises,

MRHMFL has requestcd N4FSL to provide

several amenities, services, facilitics-Usage of
commercial premises for carrying on business

smoothly.

2ol08/2018

No such amount was paid as advances.

$"Ap Rural llousing & l\{ortgagc liinance Linritctl
Annrral Rcport 201 8-20t9
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I.

Partlculars Details

Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship .flA^E Financial Services Limitcd

(MFSL)

b. Nahire of contracts / arrangements / transaction Availing of Scrvices

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

transaction lncluding the value, if any.

One Year

MFSL agrees to providc MRIIMFL within the
premises the amenities, scrviccs, Facilities-

Usage of commercial prcmiscs of MFSL,

furniture's & flxtures including computcrs,

telephone lines, networks, usc of water and

water supply, and other ncccssary amcnities

for carrying on business activitics smoothly.

e. Justification for entering into such @ntracts or

arrangements or transactions.

r. Date of approval by the Board

F] Amount paid as advances, if any

N.Ah. Date on which the special resolution was passed in General

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188
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Particulars Details

INAF Financial Services Limited

Availing of Services

Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Two Years

d Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions.

f. Date of appro\ral by the Board

rn Amount paid as advances, if anY

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting

as required under first proviso to section 188

MRHMFL appoints MFSL as recovery
agent to collect outstanding
instalments and other dues from its
cudomers and MFSL in consideration
accepts appointment and agrees to
provide the said service under the
terms and conditions as set fodh.

MRHMFL is in requirement of services
for recovery of dues from customers
at its various branches and MFSL has

network executives at its various
branches. So, to avail its services,

MRHMFL has requestcd MFSL to
provide services of rccovery agent'

L4l03l20L9

No such amount was Paid as

advances.

N.A.

$.{l Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Annual Report 201&2019
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Sl o. Particulars

Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Details

a. N.A-

b. N.A.

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction includlng the value,

if any

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions.

f. Date of approval by the Board

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N-A

s. Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

h Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required

under first proviso to section 188
N.A.

U. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at Arms length basis'

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

8$F RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMTTED

)

t

KAMLESH C. GANDHI

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: OO044852

$"Ap Rural l{orrsing & I\'lortgagc }'inancc l,imiterl
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ANNEXURE C

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1) Prelude

The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank, and is

engaged in providing home loans rural, semi-urban and urban areas.

The Companies Act, 2013 ('the ActJ places a lot of emphasis on Related Party Transactions.

Provisions of the Act along with the relevant Rules governing Related Party Transactions have

come into effect from April 1, 2014.

Section 177(4) of the Act deals with approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the

Company with related paties by the Audit Committee.

All Related Party Transactions pursuant to section 188 of the Act which are not in the ordinary

course of business and/or not on an Arm's length basis require prior approval of the Board and if

such-transactions cross the threshold limits prescribed under the Act, such transactions also

require the approval of shareholders of the Company by ordinary resolution and the Related

Parties with whom transactions are being entered shall abstain from voting on such resolution(s).

It also requires specified related party transactions to be disclosed in the Board's Report along with

the justification for entering into such transactions.

As per-the requirements of Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 issued by the

National Housing Bank (NHB) vide which the NHB notified the Houslng Finance Companies-

Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, the company shall disclose the

policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on its website and also in the Annual Report.

2) Obiective of the Policv

The objective of this policy is to set out (a) the materiality thresholds for related party transactions

and (b) the manner of dealing with the transactions between the Company and its related pafties

based on the Act, and any other laws and regulations as may be applicable to thc Company; and

(c) lay down guiding principles and mechanism to ensure proper approval, disclosure and reporting

of transactions as applicable, between the company and any of its related parties in the best

interest of the Company.

3)Aoplicabilitv and Leoa! Framework

This Policy on Related Party Transactions shall be governed by the Act read with Rules made

thereunder, as may be in force from time to time and regulations, if any, of NHB in this regard. Any

$$,p Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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references to statutory provisions shall be construed as references to those provisions as amended

or re-enacted or as their application is modified by other statutory provisions (whether before or

after the date hereof) from time to time and shall include any provisions of which they are re-

enactments (whether with or without modification)'

4) Definitions

"Arm's length transaction ('AtP')" means a transaction between two related parties that is

conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

"Related Party-, with reference to a Company, shall have the same meaning as defined in Section

2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.

'Related Party Transactaon" (RPT) means - for the purpose of Companies Act, 2013, speciRed

transactions mentioned in clause (a) to (g) of sub-section 1 of section 188 of the Act.

5) Policv on Related Party Transactions:

All Related Party Transactions (before being entered into) must be reported to the Audit Committee

for its approval in accordance with this Policy.

The Audit Committee shall periodically review this policy and may recommend amendments to this

Policy from time to time as it deems appropriate.

6) Identificataon of ootential related parties and transactions

Identification of related parties shall be as prescribed under section 2(76) ot the Companies Act,

2013 and identification of related party transactions shall be as prescribed under section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

7)Approval of Related Parw Transactions

a) Prior Approval of Audit Committee

All Related Party Transactions of the Company as prescribed under the Act shall require

prior approval of Audit Committee, whether at a meeting or by way of a Resolution by

circulation.

i) All Related Party Transactions will be submitted to the Audit Committee for prior

approval irrespective of whether such transactions are in the ordinary coursc of business

and/or at armt length or not.

ii) Where the Company has entered into a master agreement with a related pafi, which

stipulates details of every transaction like nature of the transaction, basis of pricing,

S.Ap Rural llorrsing & 14orlgagc l"inancc [,inritc(l
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credit terms, etc, the prior approval once given by the Audit Committee would suffice

and Audit Committee would only note the transactions that are entered into pursuant to

such master agreement and will not require any further approval of the Audit Committee

unless there is any change in the terms of the master agreement.

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions proposed

to be entered into by the Company subject to the following conditions:

a) The Audit committee shall, after obtaining the approval of the Board of Directors,

specif,/ the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in llne with the Policy on Related

Party Transactions of the Company and such approval shall be applicable in respect of

transactions which are repetitive in nature.- b) fne criteria for making omnibus approval shall include the following which shall be

approved by the Board:-

i) Maximum value of the transactions, in aggregate, which can be allowed under the

omnibus route in a year.

ii) The maximum value per transaction which can be allowed.

iii) Extent and manner of disclosures to be made to the Audit Committee at the time of

seeking omnibus aPProval.

iv) Review at such interval as the Audit Committee may deem fit, related party

transaction entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval

made,
v) Transactions which cannot be subject to the omnibus approval by the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while specih/ing the

criteria for making omnibus approval, namely:-

a, Repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or in future)

b. Justification for the need of omnibus approval.

c) The Audit Committee shall satisfu itself on the need for omnibus approval and that such

approval is in the interest of the Company;

d) Such omnibus approval shall specifo (i) the nameis of the related pany (ii) nature and

duration of transaction/period of transaction (iii) maximum amount of transaction that

can be entered into, (iv) the indicative base price/current contracted price and the

formula for variation in the price if any and (v) such other conditions as the Audit

Committee may deem fit;

Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and

aforesaid details are not available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for

such transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs. one crore per transaction'

$"Ap Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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The Audit Committee shall review on a quarterly basls, the details of Related Party

Transactions entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given.

SuCh omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one financial year and

shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one financial year.

Such omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions in respect of selling or disposing

of the undertaking of the Company.

b) Approval of the Board of Directors of the Company:

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Act, all kinds of transactlons specified under the

said Section and which are not in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, are

placed before the Board for its approval. In addition to the above, the following kinds of

transactions with related parties are also placed before the Board for its approval:

1. Transacti6ns which may be in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis,

but which are as per the policy determined by the Board from time to time (i.e. value

threshold and/or other parameters) require Board approval in addition to Audit

Committee approval;

2, Transactions in respect of which the Audit Committee is unable to determine whether or

not they are in the ordinary course of business and/or at arm's length basis and decides to

refer the same to the Board for approval;

3. Transactions whiCh are in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, but

which in Audit Committee's view requires Board approval.

c) Approval of the Shareholders of the Company:

All kinds of transactions specified under Section 188 of the Act which (a) are not in the

ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis; and (b) exceed the thresholds laid down

in companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2ol4 arc placed before the

shareholders for its approval.

8) Disclosures

MRHMFL shall disclose, in the Board's repoG transactions prescribed in section 188(1) of the Act

with related parties, which are not in ordinary course of business or arm's length basis along with

the justification for entering into such transaction.

9) Related Party Transactions not aporoved under this Policv

In the event the Company becomes aware of a transaction with a related parly that has not been

$.Ap Rural llousing & l\lorlgagc l"inancc Limitcd
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approved in accordance with this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed

by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and

circumstances regarding the related party transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to

the Company, including ratification, revision or termination of the related party transaction. The

Audit Committee shall also examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the failure of

reporting such related party transaction to the Audit Committee under this Policy and failure of

the internal control systems, and shall take any such action it deems appropriate. In any case,

where the Audit Committee determines not to ratiry a related party transaction that has been

commenced without approval, the Audit Commiftee, as appropriate, may direct additional actions

including, but not limited tq discontinuation of the transaction or seeking the approval of the

shareholders, payment of compensation for the loss suffered by the related party etc. In
connection with any review/approval of a related party transaction, the Audit Committee has

authority to modiry or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy.

$$p Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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t NOTICE

is hereby given that the Twelfth (12th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited will be held at 10:OO A.M., on Wednesday, the 19th

day ofJune, 2019 at 56 Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad

- 380 009 to transact the following businesses:

5rr-EffIEk-tiIIIIFINIiFFI

1, To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the year

ended March 31, 2019 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2, To declare dividend on equity and preference shares.

3, To appoint a Director in place of Mrs, Darshana Pandya, (DIN 07610402), liable to retire by

rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, beinq eligible, offers

herself for re-appointment.
4, To ratifo the appoinknent of Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regards pass

with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section L39, 142 and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s. Rajpara Associates,

Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 113428W), Chartered Accountants, as the

Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General

Meeting till the conclusion of the 13th Annual General Meeting be and is hereby ratified and

their appointment be at a remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation

with the Auditors plus applicable GST and reimbursement of travelling and out of pocket

expenses incuned by them for the purpose of audit"'

By order of the Board

Da il Hiranandani
Place :

Date :

Ahmedabad
April 24,2019

Company Secretary
(A47986)

S$$ Rural Ilorrsing & Morlgagc !'inancc l,imitctl
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NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The proxy form, to be valid and effective, should be lodged at the registered office of
the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before the
commencement of the AGM.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in

the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company

carry voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a singte person as proxy and such

person shall not act as a Proxy for any other person or shareholder'

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and

Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, June 13, 2019 to

Wednesday, June 19, 2019, (both days inclusive) for determining the entitlement of the

shareholders to the payment of dividend to the Equity Shareholders'

Subject to the provisions of Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend as recommended by

the Board of Directors, if declared at the AGM, will be dispatched/remitted commencing on or after

June 19, 2019.

All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement requiring the approval of

the Members at the AGM and other statutory registers shall be available for inspection by the

Members at the registered office of the Company during office hours on all working days between

11.00 a.m, and 1.00 p.m, on all working days of the Company from the date hereof up to the date

of ensuing annual general meeting.

In terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend not

encashed or claimed within 7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unpaid dividend

account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the

Government.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 this Notice and the Annual Report of

the Company for the financial year 2018-19 are being sent by e-mail to those Members who have

registered their e-mail address with the Company (in respect of shares held in physical form) or

with their DP (in respect of shares held in electronic form and made available to the Company by

the Depositories.

fl.Ap Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
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The Company requests those Members who have not yet registered their e-mail address, to

register the same direcUy with their DP, in case shares are held in electronic form and to the

Company, in case shares are held in physical form.

The Annual Report 2018-19 of the Company is also available on the Companys website at

www.mrhmfl.co,in

For Security reasons and for proper conduct of AGM, entry to the place of the AGM will be

regulated by the Attendance Slip, which is annexed to this Notice. Members/ Proxies are requested

to bring their Attendance Slip in all respects and signed at the place provided there at and hand it

over at the entrance of the venue. The route map of the AGM venue is also annexed to this Notice.

$.Ap Rural l{ousing & N'lorlgaqc J"inancc l,inritc<l
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Rn.IPARA ASSOGIATES
Chartered Accountants

II\DEPEI\DENT ATIDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
MAS Rural Housing and Mortgage Finance Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of MAS Rural Housing
and Mortgage Finance Limited which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
Cash Flow, the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acf') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial'
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India" including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets -of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgnents and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud
or erTor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS Financial Statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the the risks of material misstatement of the Ind

20218., Shivalik-l0, Opp. SBI Zonal Ofiice, Nr. , Nehru Nagar, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad-380015,
Ph. (07e) 2630 0340 | www.rajaparaassociates.com I admin@carajpara.com



AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operative effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
3l March,2019, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report oh Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('othe Order"), as

amende{ issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section
143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure At' a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the AcL we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c; the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
and statement of changes in equlty dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books ofaccount;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ttAnnexure B".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rajpara Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 113428W

Crvtt,

Place
Date

: Ahmedabad
: April 24,2019

Jay Soni
Partner
M. No. 174165



RI.IPARA ASSoCIATES
Chartered Accountants
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r Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
iR.i;J to in paragraph I under 'Report on othe

report of even date)

(r) In resPect of its fixed assets:

,.(a) The. company has maintained proper 
- 
records showing full particulars, including

quantitative Oltails and situation of fixed assets;

The fixed assets have been physicafly verified by the management inn a phased

manner, designed to cover ali tire items over u p.iioq of three years' which in our

opinion, is reasonable having regards to the sizi of the company and nature of its

business. pursuant to the progruil, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically

verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between

the book r..orar urO itre physical fixed assets have been noticed'

No immovable properly is held by the comlany and accolfingly, the Rlo.visions of

crause 3 (i) (c)'of tne orde, ur" not appiicabl. to the company and hence not

(b)

commented uPon.

O) According to the records of the company, there are no disputed statutory dues for

income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or servlce tax or duty of customs or duty of

(c)

(ii) The company being \91-banking 
Financial company has no inventory; Accordingly, the

\--l 
provisions oirtuurJs 3(ii) of the order are not applicable to the company'

(iil) . The company has_ not grant.d ury loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,

Limited Liability partnership or other puriigr covered in the register maintained under

section lg9 of the companiei Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a), (b) and

(c)oftheorderarenotapplicabletotheCompany.

(lv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company

has complied with the provlsions of section 185 and igo or the companies Act, 2013 In

respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted

deposits from the public within the- meaning Jr section 73 to 76 ot any other relevant

provisions of the companies Act, 2Ol3 and the Rules framed thereunder'

(vD In respect of the activities of the company,- maintenance of cost records has not been

prescribed by the cenfial Governmeni und.r sub-section (1) of section 148 of the

ComPanies Act, 2013 '

(niD According to information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, Jmployeei-staie insurance, income tax, sales

tur, wealth tar, Gooas-aira Service Tax, serviie tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,

value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it'

excise or value added tax or cess'

20218, Shivalik-10, Opp. SBI Zonal Office, Nr. Snehkunj Ambawadi, Ahmedabad-3800 1 5,
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Oiii) In our opinion and according to the informatiol and explanations given to us, the companyhas not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, nnur.iut insiitutions or Government.The Company has not issued any debentures.

(ix) company has not taken any term loan from bank or financial institutions. Also companyhas not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further puuri. offer. Accordingly,the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the order urr noi uppticaute to the company.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given bythe management, we report that no fraud 
Pt rfrr Cornpuny or on the company by its officersor employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given bythe management, the managerial remuneration has been paid o, pr*iaed in accordancewith the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section I gz read with ScheduleV to the Companies Act;

(xii) In 9ur oqinrgn,. the company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not appricabre to the company.-

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177and 188. of Companies Act, 2ol3 and the aeLits have been disclosed in the Ind ASFinancial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standarar.

(xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given bythe management, the company hai made private placement of equity shares during the year
under review and the requirements of section a;2 of the Companies Act, 2013 have beencomplied with and the amount raised have been used for the irrporc for which the fundswere raised.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given bythe management, the company hai not entered into any non-cash transactions with directorsor persons connected with him. Accordingly, the prwisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order

(xvi) In our opinion, lhe companv i! not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the-provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of theOrder are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For Rajpara Assoeiates
Chartered Accountants
rRN 113428W

0.^

Place
Date

: Ahmedabad
: April 24,2019

Jay Soni
Partner
M. No. 174165



Ra.IPARA ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

ATIIYEXI'RE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

@eferred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAS Rural
Ilousing and Mortgage Finance Limited as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit ofthe IndAS financial statements ofthe Company forthe year ended onthat date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and effrcient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be

piescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 20l3,to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assess,ing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

20218, Shivalik-l0, Opp. SBI Zonal ffice, Nr , Nehru Nagar, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad-380015,
Ph. (079) 2630 0340 | www.rajaparaassociates.com I admin@carajpara.com



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company,s internal financial contol over financial reporting is a 
-process 

designed to

provide reasonable assuranc, 
- 
,rluroing trrr i.iiuuillty of financial reporting and the

preparation of financiar statemenls for externJ purpo-r.l in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. e .o*punyt internal financial control over financial

reporting in tuJ., it *, poii"i., and pro.rdur.s that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accuratef *d aiirv-.reflect the transactions and

dispositions orthe assets ortne Lompany; (2).;ioria. reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to prr.ii pr.puiiion of financial statements in accordance with

generary accepted accounting principtis, anJ that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made Jr'ly-i;'u..oraun.. with authorizations of management and

directors of the company; unJll) proride reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unautirorir.a uJqirisition,.use, or airposition of the'sompany's assets that

could have a material effect on the financial statements'

Inherent Limitations of rnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting'

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
-be 

detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over finincial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policiis or procedures may deteriorate'

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in alr material respects,- an adequate internal financial

controls system or., nnanciar i.plJi"g *t ,u.t, internal financial tontrols over financial

reporting were operating effectiveiy u, it vrur"t ir ,z}rg,based on the internal control over

financial reporting criteria 
"r"biirti.Juv 

the comnanv gonllaering the essential components

,of internal control stated in the Guidance Note oneuait of Internal Financial controls over

Financial Reporting issued uv it . Institute of chartered Accountants of India'

For RaiPara Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN 113428W t

t/6

Place
Date

: Ahmedabad
: April 24,2019

Jay Soni
Partner
M. No. 174165



sAF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3I MARCH 2019
(Amount ln O

As at
3{ March 20{9

As at
3l March 2018

As at
1Aprll2017

Particulars Note
No.

412,289,043
192,533

2,641,405,249
16.647.054

114,228,298
322,615

1,993,902,775
13.488.161

106,749,228
155,671

1,716,668,616
12.739.502

3.070.533.879 2.121.941.849 1.836.313.017

6,940,936
9,874,207

104,905
4.920.774

1,698,698
11,660,063
12,229,406

167,539
3.507.225

908,725
11,617,205
15,755,425

63,653
903,081

21.840.822 29.262.931 29.248.089

.t -865-56,1-.1063.092.374.70{ 2.151.204.780

4,671,641

2,534,410,639
85.644.947

3,879,562

1,697,499,835
141.223.342

2,006,247

1,488,227,502
83.133,776

2.624.727.227 1.842.602.739 {.573.367.525

94,380
134,933

1.298.092
852,093

1.169.585
736,686

1.006.677
1.527.405 2.021.678 1.743.363

r _575..t {0.8882.626.2il.632 1.844.624.417

180,349,200
110.101.018

212,264,040
253.856.029

180,349,200
126.231.163

466.120.069 306.580.363 290.450.218

3.092.374.701 2.151.204.780 1.865.561.106

ASSETS
Flnancialassets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other Financial assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Flnancla! Llabllitles
Payables
(l)Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(ll) Other Payables
(i) totaloutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smallenterprises' (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other fi nancial liabilities

Total Flnanclal Liablllties
Non-Financial Llabilltles
Cunent tax liabilities (Net)
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

Total Llabllltles and Equity
See accompanyinq notes to the financialstatements

Total FlnanclalAssets

TotalEquity

Total Non Flnanclal Assets

TotalAssets

Total Non Financlal Llabllities

Total Llabilities
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Non.Financial Assets
lncome tax assets (net)
Deferred tax Assets (Net)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Other lntangible assets
Other non-financial assets

I
10 (a)
10 (b)

11

5
6
7
I

30

14
15

16
17

12

13

(ch

(Whole Time

t

CAAr

ss, Rural Houslng and Mortgage Flnance Ltd.
For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors

Dale:. 24 2019
Place:Ahmedabad

2019

In terms of our report attached
For Rajpara & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

Kamlesh C. Gandhl
& Managing Director)

(DrN - 00044852)

Jay Soni
Partner
Membership

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Operating Officer)
(DrN - 07610402)

Mukesh C. Gandhl
& Chief Financial Officer)

(DrN - 00187086)

Darshil Hiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: 447986)

Place :Ahmedabad
Dale: 24



sA, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FINANCE LTMTTED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
(Amount in O

Note
No.

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended

3l March 2018
Particulars

306,726,988

17,053,563

251,281,796

12,173,751

323,780,551 263,455,547

326,917

324.107,468 263,455,547

195,273,009

9,091,888

49,000,174

3,166,353

25,184,135

157,859,431

7,682,717

43,U1,760
4,378,994

21,2W,893
281,715,559 234,847,795

42,391,909

11,420,000
(180,835)

4,633,453

28,607,752

9,640,000
(57,065)
(42,858)

15,872,618 9,540,077

26,519,291 20,067,675

307,958
(85.674)

252,932
(70,366)

222,284 182,566

222,284 182,566

20,250,24126,741,575

0.90

0.90

lV. Tax Expense:
Cunent Tax

Short / (Excess) Provision For Tax Relating to Prior Years

Defened tax (credit) / charge

Net tax expense

Vl. Other comprehensive income
Items thatwill not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities

lncome tax impact on above

Total

Vlll. Earnings per equity share (of ( 10 each):

Basic

Diluted
See accomoanvino notes to the financial statements

lll. Profit Before Tax

V. Profit for the year (llt - lV)

Other comprehensive income

Vll. Totalcomprehensive income (V + Vl)

l. Revenue from operations
lnterest lncome

Fees and commission lncome

Total Revenue from operations

Other lncome

Totallncome

ll. Expenses
Finance Costs

lmpairment on fi nancial instruments

Employee Benefit Expenses

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Other expenses

Total Expenses

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

I

9

1.26

1.26

A

+

A

E
fno*

165

(Whole Time Di

of
Ltd.

cn^, (

,.

of
Fi

For and on behalf of the

SA, Rural Housing &

C. Gandhl

(DrN - 07610402)

Dale: 24 April, 2019

Place

ln terms of our report attached

For RaJpara & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Jay Soni
Partner

Mukesh C. Gandhi
ief Financial Officer)

(DrN - 00187086)

Darshil Hiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: A47986)

Place:Ahmedabad
Dale: 24 April,2019

(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DrN - 00044852)

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Operating Officer)

i



S.A' RURAL HOUSING & IIORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

STATEiIENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I ]IIARCH 2019

Changes ln
equlty share

capltal durlng
lhe vaar

Balance at 31

March 2018

Changes ln equlty
share capltal durlng

the year

Balance at 3l
March 2019

(Al Equlty Sharc Capltal

Partlculart
Batance at I
Aprll2017

180,349,200 31,914,840 212,2U,U0Equlty sharc of < 10 eacn lssued,
subscrlbed and fullv oald

180,349,200

(B) Other Equlty
nt ln

ln

and

Remeasurement
of tho doflned

boneflt llabllltles
TotalReeerye fund

u/r.29.C oJ
NHB Act l987

Securttles
Premlum

Retelnod
Eamlngs

Equlty component of
compound flnanclal

lmtruments -
Optlonally

Convertlble
preference sharps

Employee cost
on dlscount on

sharcg lssuod by
Holdlng

Company

Partlcularr

(92,7231

182,566

679.905

110,101,018

20,250,241

(1,077,125)

(3,722,876)

3,150,800 62,798,560

20,067,67s

(1,077,1251

(3,722,876)

(7,830,000)

18,/t45,516

679,905

25,798,865

7,830,0()0

679,905 89,84i!

222,284

126,231,163

26,741,575

(526,7871

(3,862,4271

118,085,041

(12.812.536)

33,62E,E65

10,270,000

3,150,800

118,085,041

70,236,234

26,5'.t9,291

(526,787\

(3,862,4271

(10,270,m0)

(12.E12.536)

18,t145,516

312.127 253.E56.029121-235.811 82.096.311 5.632.980 679.905

Balance_at I Aprll 2017
Total Comprehensive lncome for the year

Dividend on Equity Shares including DDT

Dividend on Preference Shares includlng
ODT

Transfer to retained eamings
Transferto Reserve fund u/s. 2$C of NHB
Act,1987

Addition on lnitial Public Offer of Holding
Company

Balance.at 31 March 2018

Totql Gomprdhensive lncome for the year

Dividend on Equity Shares including DDT

Dividend on Preference Shares including
DDT

Transfer to Reserve fund u/s. 2$C of NHB
Act,1987

Additions during the year in Security
Premium

Adjustment on account of premature

conversion to .equity share

Balancoat 31 March 2019 43.898,865

a

*
mo

(Whole Time

I
t

ov\^

t\

Ltd.
For and on behalf of the Board of Director of

.IAl RuralHouslng &
ln terms of our report attached
For RaJpara & Assoclrtes
Chartered Accountants

Kamlesh C. Gandhl
(Chairman & Managing Director)

(DlN - 00044852)

Darchana S. Pandya
(Direc-tor & Chief Operating Otricer)
(DrN - 07610402)

Jay Sonl
Partner
Membership No.174165

Mukesh C. Gandhl
Chief Financial Officer)

(DrN - 00187086)

Place :Ahmedabad
Oale: 24 Aprll, 2019

Darshll Hlranandanl
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: A47986)

Place:Ahmedabad
Dale: 24 April, 2019



sAF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIMTTED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
(Amount in ?

Particulars
Year ended 31

March 2019
Year ended 31

March 2018

3,166,353
195,273,009

1,614,867
7,477,021

(299,081,360)
(7,525,0321

(1,217\

42,391,909

(99_076.359)

4,378,994
157,859,431

1,294,674
6,388,043

(246,959,265)
(4,173,418\

679,905

28,607,752

(80.531.636)

(656,594,361)
16,055

130,092
(1,105,591)

792,079
3,326,339

(53,314,099)
017.1601

(56,684,450)

a07.466.655)

(284,916,878)
(252,226)
(166,944)

(2,421,578)

1,873,315
1,672,132

51,455,321
115.407

(51,923,884)

t232-641.4501

(204,495,543)
(9,446,087)

295.906.412

(764.151,105)

8{.964.783

(152,504,896)
(9,372,908)

246.462.832

(284,565,334)

84.585-028

(751,116)

3,813
7,525,032

'109,999,881

1,430,000,000
(561,520,563)

(620,764)
Q,389,2141

(682,186,323)

6,777,728

(956,861)

4.173.418

630,400,000
(421,088,930)

(268,250)
(4.800.001

(199,980,306)

3,2 1 6,557

204.242.819973.469.339

298,060,745

114.228.298

7,479,074

106_749.228

412,289,043 114,228,298



gb7 RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2OI9

Notes:
1 Cash and bank balances at the end of the year comprises:

(a) Cash on Hand
(b) Balances with banks
Cash and Cash Equlvalents as per Balance Sheet

As at 31

March 2019
As at 3t

March 2018

1,057,820 1 ,055, 184
4 1

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "lndirect Method" as set out in the lndian Accounting Standard - 7 on Statement
Cash Flows specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3 Non-Cash financing and investing actlvities:
During the year, the convertible instruments are converted into equity shares of the company. (Refer Note 16.3)

4 Change in liabilities arising froni flnancing activltles

Partlculars I April2018 Cash Flows Non-cash 31 March 2019

7
Totall flnancl actlvltles

* Non-cash changes includes the effect of recording financial liability at amortized @st, amortization of processing fees etc.

See accompanying explanatory notes forming part of the financial statements

ln terms of our report attached
For Rafpara & Assoclates
Chirtered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of
8^, Rural Housing & Ltd.

t
t

owt
t

Jay Soni
Partner
Membership No.174165

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Operating Officer)
(DrN - 07610402)

mlesh C. Gandhi
(c Managing Director)

(DlN - 000/+4852)

a

Darshil Hiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: A47986)

(Whole Time
Mukesh C. Gandhi

Chief Financial Offi cer)
(DrN,00187086)

Pla-ce: Ahmedabad
Dale: 24 April,2019

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 24 April, 2019



frAg RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. lt is registered as a Non Deposit taking Housing Finance Company with the National Housing Bank. The Company
provides housing loans in the segment of Affordable Housing in Rural & Urban areas, Commercial loans and Project loans
fsr construction of atfordable houses. The activities of the company are spread all over Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya
Pradesh & Rajasthan.

The Company's registered office is at 4th Floor, Narayan Chambers, B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat, lndia -380009.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compllance

Tfie standatone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting
Standards (the "lnd AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act").

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its standalone financial

statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (lndian GAAP or previous GAAP). These standalone financial

statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with
Ind AS.

2.2 Basis of fieasurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for Defined benefit plans - plan

assets which have been measured at fair value amount.

2.3 Functionaland presentationcurrency

The standalone financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (Q which is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates (the "functional currency").

2.4 Ljse of estimates and iudgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make estimates

and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

The areas involving the use of estimates or judgements are:

i) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of business model and the
payments of principal and interest ("SPP|") test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects
how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting atl relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors the financial assets measured at amortised cost
and this monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business mode! and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.



frAr RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

ii) Effective lnterest Rate ("ElR") method

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1(A), recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given /
taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the
product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expected changes to interest rates and other fee income/ expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

iii) lmpalrment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collatera! values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's expected credit loss (the "ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL
models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

a) The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a life time expected credit loss (the "LTECL") basis.

b) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.
c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, lending interest rates and

collateral values, and the effect on probability of default (the "PD"), exposure at default (the "EAD") and loss given

default (the "LGD').
d) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic

inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation
risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers
such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is

considered to be probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into

account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents. Significant iudgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the standalone financia! statements are prudent and
reasonable.



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

2,5 Prcsentatlon ofthe atandalone flnanclal statsments
Tfie Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding re@very or sattlement within 12

months afrer the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non--curent) i8 presentsd in
Note 39.

Financial assets and financial liability are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported
net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

i) The normal course of business
ii) The event of default

3.

3.1

A.

SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Recognition of lnterest lncome

EIR method

Under lnd AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments

measured at amortised cost, financial instrument measured at FVOCI and financial instruments designated at FWPL. The

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,

wheri apprbpriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of

return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial instrument.

lf expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment

is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or

reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through lnterest income in the statement of profit

and loss.

B. lnterest income

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets.

3.2 Financial lnstrument - lnitial Recognition

A. Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised

on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

B. lnitial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model

for managing the instruments (Refer note 3.3(A)). All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at amortised

cost. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, are

adjusted to the cost on initipl recogniiion.

C. Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's

measured at Amortised



frAF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

A4

3.3 Financialassetsandliabilities

A. FinancialAssets

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to

achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated

and reported to the Company's key management personnel.
b) The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)

and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.
c) How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value

the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).
d) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment.

The business modet assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or'stress case'

scenarios into account. lf cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's

ongr nal expectation S, the Company does not change the classification of the rema ining financial assets held in

business model
going fonrard.

but incorporates such ln formation when ASSES sing newly ongt nated or newly purchased financial assets

SPP|test

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether

they meet the SPPI test.

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may

oyer the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the p

discount).

change

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors

such as the period for which the interest rate is set.

ln contrast, contractuat terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash

flows that are unrelated to a basic lehding arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. !n such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured

FVTPL.

Accordingly, the financial assets are measured as follows:

i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost ("AC")

ii)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the

asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Einancial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOC!")
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FWPL.

f?ta
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RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

B. Financial Liability

i) lnitial recognition and measurement
All financiat liability are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition

or issue of financial liabitity, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial

recognition.

ii) Subsequentmeasurement
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional

circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never

reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financia! assets or liabilities in the year 2018-19 and 2017-18.

3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

i) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financia! asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to

receive the contractuat cash flows in a transaction in which substantially alt of the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and

rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date

derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

is

ii)

Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss as

per lnd nS tOg. Also, the Company recognises servicing income as a percentage of interest spread over tenure of loan in

cases where it retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset.

As per the guidelines of RBl, the company is required to retain certain portion of the loan assigned to parties in its books

as Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR). Therefore, it continue to recognise the portion retained by it as MRR.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an

existing financia! tiability is. replaced 
-by 

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original

liabilityand the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and

the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.6 lmpairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles
ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than

those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are-measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i.) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial

instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

ii.) Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life

the financial instrument)

A.

+

+
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Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage l: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months
ECL. Stage 1 loans includes those loans where there is no significant credit risk observed and
also includes facilities where the credit risk has been improved and the loan has been reclassified
from stage 2 or stage 3.

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the life time ECL. Stage 2 loans also includes facilities where the credit
risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from stage 3.

Loans considered credit impaired. The Company records an allowance for life time ECL.

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

B. The calculation of ECLs

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still

in the portfolio.

EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments

LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. lt is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. lt is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company has calculated Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure at Defautt (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGDs) to

determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans and discounted at an approximation to the ElR. At every reporting date,

the above calculated PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

C. Folward looking information

ln its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking macro parameters and estimated the impact on

the default at a given point of time.

3.7 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety after reasonable efforts for recovery have been made and
when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial
instrument on the statement of profit and loss.

3.8 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

another valuation technique.

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2, ot 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

* mo
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3,9 Rscognltlon of other lncoms and expensea

Revenue (other han for those items to which lnd AS 1Og - Financial lnstruments are applicable) is measured at fair value
of the consideration re@ived or receivable. lnd AS 115 - Revenue from contracis with customers ouuines a single

comptehengive modsl of accounting for revenue arising from contracls with customers and suPeBedes cunent revanue

recognition guidance found within lnd ASs.

The Company recognises revsnue from contrac€ with customers based on a fivE step model as set out in lnd As 1 I 5 :

Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties

creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentity performance obligations in the contract A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a

customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company

expects to be entiled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected

on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract For a contract that has more than one

p"riormance obtigation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that

depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each

performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

A. lnterest income on Bank deposits & Other lncome

lnterest income on Bank deposits is accounted on accrua! basis. Other Operating lncome such as Service Charges,

Stamp and Document Charges etc. are recognised on accrual basis.

B. Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income such as stamp and document charges, guarantee commission, service income etc. are

recognised on point in time basis.

C. Borrowing costs

Borrowing Costs are the interest and other costs that the Company rncurs n connection with the borrowing of funds

Borrowing costs that are directly aftributable to the acqu isition or construction of qua! ifying assets are capitalised AS pa rt

the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset rs an asset that necessan ly takes a substantial pen od of time to get ready for its

intended us€ or sale.

All other bonowing costs ara charged to the statement of profit and loss for the Period for which they are incuned.

3.10 Cash and ca3h equlvalonts

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits wih banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an

originat mjturity of trree months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignilicant risk of cfianges in value.

+ E
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

A

3.11 Property, plant and Equlpments

Property, Plant and Equipments are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
of Property, Plant and Equipments comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditu
on making the asset ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses. Subsequent expenditure on Property,
and Equipments after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as specified under Schedule ll of the Act.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

i) Office Equipment - 3 to 15 years
ii) Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years
iii) Vehicles-8years

ln respect of property, plant and Equipments purchased during the period, depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis
from the date on which such asset is purchased or ready for its intended use.

The residua! values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying imount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the

asset is derecognised.

3.12 lntangible Assets

The Company's other intangible assets inctude the value of software and trademark. An intangible asset is recognised on

when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to

it will flow to the Company.

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
i) Software: 3 years
ii) Trademark: 10 years

3.13 tmpairment of non financial assets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The carrying vatues of assets / cash generating units at the each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. lf any

indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and if the carrying amount of these

assets exceeds their recoverable amount, impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an

expense, for such excess amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in

use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When

there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may

have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.14 Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or whether the a a right to use the asset.

+
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Company as a lessee
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased

items are operating teases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on

a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease
payments are recognised based on contractualterms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.

3.15 Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined

contribution pt-ans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when

services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
The Company pays gratuity to the emptoyees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time

resignation / retirement. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment

Gratuity Ad 1972.

The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the

employees. The gratuity fund has been approved by respective lncome Tax authorities.

The ;iability in respect of giatuity and other post-employment benefits is catculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method

and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' services.

As per lnd AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Actuaria!

gains and losses arising due to differences in the actual experience and the assumed parameters and also due to changes

in tne assumptions used for valuation, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl).

Short-term employee benefits
All employee beneiits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee

benefits. Benefits such ai salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the

employee renders the retated service. A tiaOillty is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present

legal or constructive obtigation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumutated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement

future compensated absences; and
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

3.!6 Proyisiom, eonungent llablliti€ ahd contngent a33et8

A Prcvblons

provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construcdive) as a result of Past events,

and it is probable thlt an oumo! r of resourcoa embodying Bconomic benefits will be required to se$e he obligation, and a

reliable es0mate can be mado of the amount of the obligation. When the effecl of tho time valrc of monsy is material, the

Company determines the
rates specific to the liabil
any reimbursement.

level of provis ron by dtsco unting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current

ity The expense relating to any provision is presented tn the statement of profit and loss net

B Contingent liability

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or; present obligation

that arises from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to setge the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sutficient reliability are disclosed

as contingent liability and not provided for.
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C. Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are not recognised and disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.17 Taxes

A. Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in

OCI or equig.

B. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws
and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off.

C. Goods and services tax / value added taxes pald on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/ value added taxes paid, except when the tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or availing of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the
tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authori$ is included as part of receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

3.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) as
adjusted for after-tax amount of dividends and interest recognised in the period in respect of the dilutive potential ordinary
shares and is adjusted for any other changes in income or expense that would result from the conversion of the dilutive
potential ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share as increased by the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits /
reverse share splits, right issue and bonus shares, as appropriate.

/21-:\\
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3.19 Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Companies Act,
2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised di
in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount
of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4 . STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA'), through Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the following new and amendments to
lnd ASs which the Company has not applied as they are effective from April 1, 2019:

lnd AS 116 - Leases

lnd AS 116 Leases was notified on 30 March 2019 and it replaces lnd AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. lnd AS
116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apri! 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under lnd AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value'assets (e.9., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e.

the right-of-use asset). Lessees wil! be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under lnd AS 116 is similar to existing lnd AS 17

accounting

The following changes to lessee accounting may have a material impact as follows:

Right-of-use assets will be recorded for assets that are leased by the Company; currently no lease assets are included
on the Company's financial statements.
Liabilities will be recorded for future lease payments in the Company's financial statement.
Lease expenses will be for depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities; interest will typically be
higher in the early stages of a lease and reduce over the term. Currently Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line
with expected genera! inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractualterms.

- Operating lease cash flows are currently included within operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash
flows: under lnd AS 116 these will be recorded as cash flows from financing activities reflecting the repayment of lease
liabilities (borrowings) and related interest.

The Company majorly has operating lease agreements wherein the Company is a lessee and the above mentioned
impacts shall have to be adopted.

For leases other than short-term leases, the Company will recognise right-of-use asset of ( 7,280,521 and lease liability
< 7,806,015 on 1 April 2019 with the cumulative effect of applying the standard by adjusting retained earnings net of taxes.
There will be consequent reclassification in the cash flow categories in the statement of cash flows.

lnd AS 12 lncome taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty
income tax treatments)

The amendment relating t0 income tax consequences of dividend clarify that a Company shall recognise the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or !oss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the Company
o-riginally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not expect any impact from this
pronouncement. lt is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the Company pays a tax on
dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid

payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with lnd AS 12.

E ma
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The amendment to Appendix C of lnd AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under lnd AS 12. lt outlines the following: (1) the Company has to use judgement, to determine whether each
tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision should be

based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the Company is to assume
that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of al! relevant information while examining any amount (3) Company has
to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable
profit (tax loss), tax bases;,uoused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The
Company does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

lnd AS 109 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments retate to the existing requirements in lnd AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income)

even in the case of negative compensation payments.

lnd AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clariff that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service

cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-

measurement. ln addition, amendments have been included to clariff the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or

settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling.
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(Amount in O

Particulars As at 31

March 2019
As at 31 March

2018
Asatl

Aoril2017
Note 5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Bblances with Banks:

ln CurrenU Cash CreditAccounts
TotalCash and Cash Equlvalents

Note 6. Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
ln Current Accounts (Refer Note below)
Tota! Bank Balance other than cash and cash equlvalents

Note: Balance represents balance with banks in earmarked account i.e
"Cellection and Payout Account".

Note 7. Loans (At amortised cost)
(A) (i) Term Loans

(ii) Others
Total(A) -Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (A) - Net

(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets
(ii) Unsecured

Total(B)-Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (B)-Net

(C) (l) Loans in lndia
(i) Public Sector
(ii) Private Sector

Total (C)-Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total(C) (l) -Net

(C) (ll) Loans outside lndia
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (C) (!l)- Net
Total C(l) and G(ll)

1,057,820

411,231,223

1,055,184

113,173,114

815,397

105.933.831
412,289,043 114.228.298 106,749,228

192,533 322,615 155,671
192.533 322,615 155,671

2,635,735,996
18.162.400

1,993,035,438
11,745,618

1,714,694,107
11.558.114

2,653,898,396
12,493,147

2,004,781,056
10,878,281

1,726,252,222
9,583,606

2,641,405,249 1.993,902,775 1.716.668.616

2,653,898,396 2,004,781,056 1,726,252,222

2,653,898,396
12,493,147

2,004,781,056
10.878.281

1,726,252,222
9.583,606

2,641,405,249 1.993.902.775 1,716,668,616

2.653.898.396 2,004,781,056 1.726.252.222
2,653,898,396

12,493,147
2,004,781,056

10,878,281
1,726,252,222

9,583,606
2,641,405,249 1.993.902.775 1,716,668,616

2,641,405,249 1,993,902,775 1,716,668,616

Notoa:
1. Loans grantBd by the Company ar6 sscursd or partly s€cur€d by Register€d / Equltable morEago of property, other S€curltles,

assbnments of Lifs lnsurance policios and /or Company guarantees and/or Personal guaranbes and /or Undottaking to creaE a
security 8nd/ or Cash Collabral.

2: Percentage of loans against gold to total assets

3. The Company has advanced loans to its officer. Principal amount of such
loans outstanding is:

0.00%

2,191,756

0.00%

2,348,503

0.00%

2,489,564
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sA, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARCH 2O'9

(Amount ln (l
As at 3l March

20t I
As at 31 March

2014 As at 1 Aprll2017Partlculars

1,190,500
15.456.554

1,206,555
12.281.606

954,329
11.785j73

16.647.054 13.488.161 12,739,502

Note 8. Other Flnancial Assets
Security deposits
lnterest accrued but not due on loans and advances
Tota! Other Flnanclal Assets

(Amount in {)Note 9- lncome Tar

2017-182018-19
11,420,000

(180,835)
4.633.453

8,640,000
(57,065)
(42.858)

{5.872.618 8.540.077
11,239,165
4.633.453

8,582,935
(42.858)

The components of income tax expense for the year: ended 3l March 2019 and 2018 are:

Cunent tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Defened tax
Total tax charge

Cunent tax
Deferred tax

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at lndia
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018 is, as follows:

9.1 Reconclliatlon of the total tax charge

20r8-19 2017-18

(135.688)

42,391,909
27.820/o

11,793,429

7,058,590
(2,843,713)

28,607,752
27.550/o

7,882,151

1,',178,167
(2,144,390)
1,631,175

0.0261
15,872,6'18

37.44o/o

8,540,077
29.850/o

Accounting profit before tax
Applicable Tax Rate
Computed Tax Expense (Al
Tax effect of :

Non deductible items
Additional Deduction
Adjustment on account of change in tax rate

'Others

Tax Expenses recognised ln Statement of Proflt and Loss (A-B-C)
Effective Tax Rate

9.2 Deferred Tax

Partlculars As at 3t March
20{9

As at 3t March
2018

11,660,063
(85,674)

(4.633.453)

11,617,205
182,566

(139.708)

6.grrc.936 11.660,063

Deferred Tax Asset / LlabiliW (Net)
The movement on the defened tax account is as follows:

At the start of the year DTA / (DTL)
CrediU(Charge) for Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities
CrediU(Charge) to Statement of Profit and Loss
At the end of vear DTA, (DTLI

The followlng table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the lncome tax expense:

As at 31 March
2018

CredlU(Charge)
to Proflt or Loss

Recognlsed in
oct

As at 31 March
20{9

614,280

1,078,974
789,125
644,955

(7.760.787\

(85,674)

(60,476)

2,687,366
900,914

3,475,594
37.538

(674,756)

1,694,066
11,789

2,830,638
7.798.326

11.660,063 (4.633.453) (85.674) 6,940.936

Component of Deferred tax asset / (llabiliW)
Defened tiax asset / (liability) in relaUon to:
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per
books of accounts and income tax

Income taxable on realised basis
Defened tiax on prepaid finan@ charges
lmpairment on financial assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis
Total

As at I Aprll
2017

CrediU(Charge)
to Proflt or Loss

Recognlsed in
oct

As at 3l March
2018

(1,032,814)

1,368,982
(235,139)

3,168,627
8.347.549

358,058

325,084
246,928

(337,989)
(549.2231

(674,756)

1,694,066
11,789

2,830,638
7.798.326

11.617.205 42.858 1r.660.063

Component of Deferred tax asset / (liabiliW)
Deferred tiax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per
books of ac@unts and income tiax

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities
lncome taxable on realised basis
Defered tax on prepaid finance charges
lmpairment on financial assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis
Total

\

* m
a,
*



sAF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LtMtrED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Note 10. Property, Plant and Equipments and lntangible assets
(Amount ln O

Nature of Assets

Propefi, Plant and Equipments (a) lntangible Assets (b)

Office
Equipments

Furniture and
Fixtures

Vehicles Total SoftvYare
Other

lntangibles
Total

At Gost
At 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals
At 31 March 2018

Additions
Disposals
At 31 March 2019

Depreclation/Amortisation
At 1 April2017
Depreciation/Amortization Charge
Disposal
At 3l March 2018

DepreciatiorVAmortization Charge
Disposal
At 31 March 2019

Net Block Value:
At I April 2017
At 3l March 2018
At 31 March 2019

4,423,780
350,639

1,094,559
416,222

10,237,086 15,755,425
766,861

63,653
190,000

63,653
190,000

4,774,419

567,857
5.485

1,510,781

158,711

10,237,086 16,522,286

726,568
5,485

253,653

14,549 10,000

253,653

24,549

5,336,791

2,534,583

1,669,492

129,467

10,237,086

1,628,830

17,243,368

4,292,880

268,202

86,114

10,000 278,202

86,114

2,534,583

1,406,027
4.459

129,467

169,945

1,628,830

1,504,769

4,292,880

3,080,741
4,459

86,114

87,021 162

86,114

87,183

3,936,151

1.4.23-780

299,412

t.094.s59

3,133,599

{0.237.086

7,369,162

15.755.425

173,135

63.653

162 173,297

63.653
2.239.836 1.381.314 8.608.2s6 12.229.406 167.539 167.539
1.400.640 1.370.080 7.103.487 9.874.207 95.007 9.838 104.905

AA

t

A

t

m6



s3,, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LrMrrED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARCH 2OI9
(Amount ln t)

Partlculars As at
3'l March 2Ol9

As at
3t March 2Ol8

As at
I Aorll20{7

Note 11. Other non-flnanclal assets
Prepaid expenses
Advances to employees
Balance with Govemment Authorities

Gratuity Fund
Other Advances

Total other non-financlal assets

Note 12. Borrowlngs (Other than Debt Securitiesl (At amortlsed cost)
(a) Term loans (Refer Note No. 12.3)

(i) from Banks

(iD from National Housing Bank' 
(iii) from Financial lnstitutions

(b) Liability component of compound financial instruments (Refer Note No. 12.1)

(c) Loans repayable on demand

(i) from banks - Cash Credit (Refer Note No. 12.2)

(ii) from other parties

Less: Unamortised Bonowing Cost
Total(A)

Bonowings in lndia

Bonowings outside lndia

Total (B) to tally wlth (A)

14,182
55,000

3,940,666

388,345
522,581

75,418
84,886

2JA3,240

554,417
629,264

175,186
62,000

5,143

123,581
537,'.171

4.920.774 3.507.225 903.081

2,303,969,447

121,286,000

120,753,770

31,873

It I 630.451

1,315,981,480

177,499,000

184,049,300

27,187,464

652,637

r.870.046)

1,308,928,710

159,290,000

24,510,720

920,887

6.422.815)
2.534.'110.639 t.697.499.835 1.48.227.502

2,534,410,639 1,697,499,835 1,488,227,502

2.534.410.639 1,697,499,835 1,488,227,502

l{ote lZl
(a) Uabilrty Component ot Compourd fnancisl imturl€r|tt r€9rr!€llts D€U collponeni ot 8% Optomlly Conve.tble PElerenca Sharsr. Funher, dudne th€
qrnent yEar th6.amo reI€ co.rEri.d lnb 8,51.(61 Eoulty ShaE! havin0 6co yglus of R9. 10 oadr 9t a plemlum of tt!. 37 pe. €quN 5hare.

(b) Reconclllatlon of the number of shares and amount outstandlng at the beglnnlng and at the end of the reportlng perlod:

Partlculars
As at 3l March 20{8 AsatlA

No. of Shares (Amount In O No. of Shares {Amount in ?l No. of Shares (Amount ln O
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Legs: Converted into Equity Shares (Refer Note
(a) above)
Outstandinq at the end of the year

4,000,000
4,000,000

40,000,000
40,000,000

4,000,000 40,000,000 4,000,000 40,000,000

4 000 000 40 000 000 4 000 000 40.000.000

(c) Detalls of shares held bv each shareholder holdino more than 5olo shares:

Class of ehares / Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 ,orl,2017
Number of

shares held
% holdlng in
that clase of

sharas

Number of
shares held

% holdlng ln
that class of

sharas

Number of
shares held

% holdlng ln
that clase of

eharas
8% Optlonally Convertible Preference
Mukesh C. Gandhi
Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Shweta K. Gandhi

0.00%
0.00%
0.007o

2,000,000
1,000,000
1.000.000

50.007o

25.00o/o

25.00o/o

2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

50.00%
25.OOo/o

25.00o/o

(dl Tarnlr rlghtt rtbchod to prDfofonco rhrBr
4,000,000 OCPS rvers having a par valuo of R3. 10 eadr per lhatB TtEce OCPS ca[ied a dght io bo pald tb(ed preGleo&l dMdend at the rgb of 8% p€r annum
frce of incoiEtax
The plelbrellce shgre€ $rgre optbnally conveied into oquity shsr€s at a pdco to bE delemin€d at the tima of @.r\r€Eion. The Crnv€rsiodRedomption oplion war
io b€ exerclsed lbr 3i!.33% ot the Ehale. ln lhe slh !Esr, 6.33.33% d lhe rhalr! ln the 0b yger and for.Bm8ining 33.33% of tr€ sharBg in Uo 7tr }l9r fiorn t|e
date of ilsre of tho6e lh8r!!.
Ths ttolder o, tr€ prBfttEnce shalE capnal, in .ecpect of sucfi caplal, had 9 right to rob only on lgsolutions phced b€fore h€ Compeny whbh dllrc0y sied the
rEhts atladEd b hl8 pleGrcnco !h.rE .

Noto 12.2
Cs3h Cr€ditliom Blnk t! B€cured by Flr8t pad-pasEu afia0e on ths standEd i€eivable! oI lhe oomparry w{h o&er CC/OD lendeE (except sp€cflc po.tblio
Cenerabd fom vadou! bm loan! 8€ndion€d by variouE banks/fnandal lnsttullonE on an oduglve basis). Th€ loan! alg allo luaranbod by Mr. Kgmlcsh
Chimanhl Gaflrhl and Mr Mukert Chlmenl.l G.ndhi.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of bonowings and interest.



.frA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

12.3 Detalls of terms of redemptlon/repayment and securlty provaded in respect of debt securltleg and borrowlngs:

Pafticulars Amount Terms of Redemotion/ Reoavment Securltv
Term Loans from Banks

Repayment in I Quarterly lnstalment from
1111112018.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 6

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide security cover of the outstanding
amount of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the
tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-l 15,000,000

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide security cover of the outstanding
amount of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the
tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-ll 75,000,000 Repayment in 8 Quarterly lnstalment from
1111212018.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 6

Term Loan-lll 87,500,000 Repayment in 8 Quarterly lnstalment from
2710312019.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 7

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of the Company (identified loan
a$ets) sufficient to provide security cover of the outstanding
amount of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the

tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-lV 18,750,000 Repayable in 24 Quarterly instalments
irom28lO2l2O14.
Rate of interest One Year MCLR +Spread
Maturity Period: < 1 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 3

Loan is secured by hypothecation charge on portfolio created
form the bank finance. Corporate Guarantee of MAS Financial
Services Ltd. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.

Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-V 42,113,095 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting lrom O1 I 09 l2O1 4
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 5

Loan is secured by hypothecation charge on portfolio created
form the bank finance. Corporate Guarantee of MAS Financial
Services Ltd. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.

Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Vl 133,541,667 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting trom 31 lO3l2O17
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR +Spread
Maturity Period: 3F4 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 15

Loan is secured by hypothecation charge on portfolio created
form the bank finance. Perconal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Vll 62,500,000 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
startin-g trom 31 10312017

Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 3-4 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 15

Loan is secured by hypothecation charge on portfolio created
form the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Vlll 44,509,449 Repayment in 8 Quarterly lnstalments
starting trom O7 I 1012017
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: < 1 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 2

Loan is secured by First & exclusive Hypothecation of Specific
Receivables which are not more than 30 days
overdue. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.

Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-lX 54,166,663 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
Deginning from 31.07.201 6
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 3-4 yearg
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 13

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-X 33,333,328 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting ftom 30.06.201 7
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 4 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 16

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Xl 66,666,664 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting from 30.06.201 7
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 4 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 16

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Xll 32,142,906 Repayment in 28 Quarterly lnstalment from
30t04t2014
Rate of interest One Year MCLR+Spread
p.a.
Maturi$ Period: 2-3 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 10

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Corporate
Guarantee of MAS Financial Services Ltd. Personal Guarantee
of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

A

+
,?t
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flA' RURAL HOI.iSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31 MARCH 2019

12.3 Detallg of terms of redemption/repayment and securlW provided in respect of debt securltles and borrowlngs:

Partlculans Amount Terms of Redemotlon/ Reoavment Securltv
Term Loan-Xlll 8,750,000 Repayment in 20 Quarterly lnstalment from

31/03/2016
Rate of interestBBR+ Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 7

Hypothecation of the Receivables arising out of onward lending
of Rupee Term loan extended by the Bank. Corporate
Guarantee of MAS Financial Services Ltd. Personal Guarantee
of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XlV 24,999,996 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
beginning from 30.06.201 6
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 3 years
Remaining No. of Instalments : 12

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XV 95,833,333 Repayment ln 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting from 31/01/2019
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+ Spread
Maturity Period: $6 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 20

The Loan is secured by Exclusive charge by way ol
hypothecation on standard assets portfolio of receivables
(excluding stressed assets).Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XVl 50,000,000 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting from 30/09/201 9
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+ Spread
Maturity Period: 6-7 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 24

The Loan is secured by Exclusive charge by way ol
hypothecation on standard assets portfolio of receivables
(excluding stressed assets).Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XVll 237,500,000 Repayment in 10 Quarterly lnstalments
starting trom 281 O2l2O1 9
Rate of lnterest One Year MCLR+ Spread
Maturity Period: 2-3 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 9

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Mr. Mukesh Gandhi & Mrs
Shweta Gandhi.

Term Loan-XVlll 250,000,000 Repayment in 26 Quarterly lnstalments
starting lrom 281 O2l2O1 I
Rate of Interest One Year MCLR+ Spread
Maturity Period: &7 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 25

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Mr. Mukesh Gandhi & Mrs
Shweta Gandhi.

Term Loan-XlX 13,750,000 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalment from
19t03t2016.
Rate of interestBBR+Spread
Matudty Period: 2-3 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 11

First & Exclusive Charge by way of Hypothecation of such of the
book debts, which are financed to be financed by the company
out of the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi. & Mrs. Sweta K. Gandhi.

Term Loan-)(X 32,079,000 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalment from
1910312010.
Rate of interest BBR+Spread
Maturity Period: 2-3 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 11

First & Exclusive Charge by way of Hypothecation of such of the
book debts, which are financed to be financed by the company
out of the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi. & Mrs. Sweta K. Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXl 79,166,673 Repayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalment from
3110312018.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 4-5 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 19

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard recelvables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide one time security cover of the
outstanding amount of the term loan on a continuous basis,
during the tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXll 66,666,672 Repayment in 36 monthly lnstalment from
3010412018.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 24

The Term loan shall be secured by ftrst ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide one time security cover of the
outstanding amount of the term loan on a continuous basis,
during the tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-)O(ll 280,000,000 Repayment in I Quarterly lnstalment from
2711212019.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 2-3 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : I

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide security cover of the outstanding
amount of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the
tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-)O(V 500,000,000 Repayment in 18 Quarterly Instalment from
30/06/2019.
Rate of interest One year MCLR+Spread
Maturity Period: 4-5 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 18

The Term loan shall be secured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on strandard receivables of the Company (identified loan
assets) sufficient to provide security cover of the outstranding
amount of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the
tenure of the term loan. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

2,303,969,447fota! Term Loans from
Banks

* mo
*



.TA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITEO

NOTES FORMTNG PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

12.3 Detalls of terms of redemptlon/repayment and security provlded ln respect of debt securitles and borrowlngs:

Partlculars Amount Terms of Redemotlonl Reoavment Securltv
Term Loans from Others

Term Loan-XXV 39,736,000 Repayment in 39 Quarterly lnstalment
tromO1lO7l2O17
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity Period: &7 years
Remainino No. of lnstralments : 24

First & Exclusive Hypothecation of Specific Receivables of the
oompany. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXVI 7,944,000 Repayment in 39 Quarterly lnstalment
from 0110712017
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity Period: 6-7 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 24

First & Exclugive Hypothecation of Specific Receivables of the
company. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXVll 7,944,000 Repayment in 39 Quarterly lnstralment
tromO1lO712017
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity Period: 6-7 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 24

First & Exclusive Hypothecation of Specific Receivables of the
company. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXVlll 34,461,000 Repayment in 39 Quarterly lnstalment
lromO1lO7l2O17
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity P,eriod: 6-7 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 24

First & Exclusive Hypothecation of Specific Receivables of the
company. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXIX 776,000 Repayable in 27 Quarterly instalments
trom01l07l2O13.
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity Period: < 1 years
Remainino No. of Instalments : 3

A first exclusive mortgage and or a first exclusive charge by way
of hypothecation of such of the book debts, which are financed /
to be financed by the Company. Corporate Guarantee of MAS
Financial Services Ltd.

Term Loan-XXX 30,425,000 Repayment in 51 Quarterly lnstalment
lromO1l0712014
Rate of interest Fixed
Maturity Period: 8-9 years
Remainino No. of lnstalments : 32

A first exclusive mortgage and or a first exclusive charge by way
of hypothecation of such of the book debts, which are financed /
to be financed by the Company. Corporate Guarantee of MAS
FinancialServices Ltd.

Term Loan-)(XXl 72,727,270 Repayment in 11 Quarterly lnstalments
starting from 30/09/201 8
Rate of lnterest BBR-Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 7

The Loan is secured by Exclusive first charge on the loan
portfolio of the Borrower by way of
hypothecation on the loan instalments receivables created from
the
proceeds of the Facility. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-)C(Xll 22,220,000 Repayment in 36 Monthly lnstalments
starting trom 1 5lO8l2O17
Rate of lnterest LTLR-Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 16

Loan is secured by hypothecation of book debts created out ol
the loan availed.

Term Loan-)C(Xlll 25,90q,500 Repayment in 31 Monthly lnstalments
starting from 1 5/01/201 8
Rate of lnterest LTLR-Spread
Maturity Period: 1-2 years
Remaining No. of lnstalments : 16

Loan is secured by hypothecation of book debts created out o'l

the loan availed.

Total Term Loans from
Others

Total Term Loans

242,039,770

2-6tLA-OOg-217



&bF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2OI9
(Amount in O

Particulars
As at

31 March 2019
As at

31 March 2018
As at

1Aoril2017
Note 13. Other financial liabilities
!nterest accrued but not due on borrowings
lnterest accrued but not due on others
Dues to the assignees towards collections from assigned receivables
Security Deposits from borrowers (Refer Note No. 1 below)
Amount Received under Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme (Refer Note No. 2
below)
Other Advances
Total other financial liabilities

3,661,581
296,048
369,520

16,575,000

58,499,111
6,243,687

85,64,y'.,947

2,106,706
7,313,052

414,086
128,472,',|50

2,917,348
@

'1,716,210
2,578,527

407,158
77,186,665

1,245,216

-trffi'-Note:
1. All the deposits from borrowers as on 31 March 2019 are from Corporate entities.

2. Ths Cr€dit Linksd Subsidy amount represents the amount rgceiv€d trom National Housing Bank at hs end o, the yoar pending cr€dit
b Cusbm6r accounB. basad on thelr eligibility.

Note 15. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory remittances
Total other non-financial liabilities

Note {4. Provisions
Provigion for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences
Total Provisions

134,933
134.933

852,093
852,093

736,686
736.686

1,298,092
1,298,092

1,169,585

-Tr'6ffi

1,006,677
{.006,677



sA, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2019
(Amount ln O

Particulars As at
3l March 2019

As at
31 March 20{8

As at
I Aprll20t7

Note 16. Equlty Share Capltal
Authorlzed Sharee:

23,000,000 Equity Shares of {10 each
(As at 31 March 2018: 23,000,000 Equity Shares of (10 each)
(As at 1 April 2017: 23,000,000 Equi$ Shares of (10 each)

7,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each
(As at 31 March 2018: 7,000,000 Preference Shares of (10 each)
(As at 1 April2017:7,000,000 Preference Shares of ?10 each)

lssued, Subscrlbed and Fully Pald-Up Shares:
2'1,226,404 Equity Shares of (10 each fully paid up

(As at 31 March 2018: '18,034,920 Equity Shares of ?10 each)
(As at 1 Apnl2017:18,034,920 Equity Shares of {10 each)

230,000,000

70,000,000

230,000,000

70,000,000

230,000,000

70,000,000

300.000.000 300,000,000 300,000,000

212,264,040 180,349,200 180,349,200

212-261-O40 t80.349.200 r80.349.200

16.1 Reconcltlatlon of the number of shares and amount outstandlng at the beglnning and at the end of the reportlng period:

Partlculars
As at 3l March 2019 As at 3l March 2018 As at I April20{7

No. of Shares (Amount In Q No. of Shares (Amount ln Q No. of Shares (Amount ln Q

Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
lssued. during the year (Refer Note No. 16.2)

Converted from 87o Optionally Convertible
Preference Shares
Outstandino at the end of the year

18,034,920
2,340,423

851.061

180,349,200
23,404,230

8.510.6't0

18,034,920 180,349,200 18,034,920 180,349,200

21226.404 212.264.O40 18.034.920 180.349.200 18.034.920 180 349.200

16.2 l..ue of Shlra Captul
PuBuant to th€ Privab Placalrler( offer leffe. ('Ofter Doemenf) dabd Madr 16, 1D10, the Company har auotled 2,340.423 €quity sh8.es on lilarch 30, 2OlS
havlng face valu€ of Rs. 1U- per shars at a pr€mlum of Rs- 3Z- p€r Ehgre. The Company ha8 rabed btslof Rs. 10.9S Croreg bl|ad8 pdvatg plac€ment off6l

16.3 Conyetaloo of Optlo.lally Conw'{blo lNtrunont!
The 8% Optonglly CoNedble PrereEnca Sharss w€r€ coov€risd lnb 8,61,081 Equlty Share3 havlng face value of <iO/- eadr at a premlum of l378hare on

Madr S0,2019.

{6.4 Details of shares held bv each shareholder holdlnq more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2019 at As at t Aorll2017
Number of

shares held
% holding ln
that class of

cherae

Number of
shares held

% holdlng ln
that class of

eharoc

Number of
shares held

% holdlng ln
that class of

shares
Equity Shares
MAS FinancialServices Limited (Holding Co.)
Mukesh C. Gandhi
Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Shweta Kamlesh Gandhi

12,664,893
4,040,606
2,486,510
2.034.095

59.670/o

19.O4o/o

11.7101o

9.58o/o

10,750,000
3,402,310
2,060,980
1.821.330

59.61olo
18.87Vo
't1.43Yo
1O.1Oo/o

10,750,000
3,402,3'10
2,060,980
1.821.330

59.61olo
18.87o/o

11.43o/o

10.1Oo/o

16.5 Teims/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only ong dass of equity sharEs having p6r valus of< '10 p€r shar€. Eadr holder of equftV share3 ls enli[ed io on€ vob per tha,e. Th€
Company d6claro! and psyr dlvldend8 ln lndlan rupeeB. Th6 divldend p.opo!€d by thg Bo€rd ol Dlrecto{s ls Bubje., io lhe apprcval of ths sharchok ers ln the
emulm Annual Genorsl M€qiino.

ln lho ev€nt of liquidatio.r of tho Compgny, he holders d equlty 8har€8 will be qrlitled b r€coiw rsmaining asleb ot th€ compqny, gtter dlEtihrtioo of all
pEfersntial amounb. The distsibutio.r will be in plopodion b the numb€r qf equig thergs h€ld by Ule shsreholders.



Jfcl, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FINANCE LlMlrED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2Ot9
(Amount ln O

Partlculars
As at

3l March 2019
As at

31 March 2018
As at

I Aprll2017

Note 17. Other Equity
Equity component of compound financlal instruments- Optionally Convertlble preference ahares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Less: Equity component of OCPS converted into Equity Share Capital
Outstanding at the end of the year

IPO Discount glven by Holdlng company
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Regerue fund u/s. 294 of NHB Act,l987:
Opening Balance
a. Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

.0. Amount of Speciat Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of lncome Tax Ac{, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory reserue u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

c. Total

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a. Amount transfened u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b. Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purpos* of Stratutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

Less:
a, Amount appropriated u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b. Amount withdrawn from Special Reserve u/s 36(iXviii) of lncome Tax Act, '1961 taken into
account for the purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

Closing Balance
a. Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
b. Amountof SpecialReserveu/s36(iXviii)of lncomeTaxAct, 1961 takenintoaccountforthe

purposes of Statutory reserue u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987
c. Total

Securities Premium
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Surplus jn Statement of Profit and Loss
.Outstandirig at the beginning of the year
Add: Opening lnd AS Adjustment
Add: Profit for the year

Less : Appropriations:
Reserve u/s.29-C of NHB Act,1987 & Special Reserye U/s 36(1)(viii) of lncome Tax Act,1961
Dividend on Equity Shares
Dividend on Preference Shares
Dividend Distribution Tax on Equity Dividend
Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend
Tota! ApproprlaUons

Net Surplua ln Statement of Profit and Losc

Other Comprehensive lncome
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Rerneasurement of the defined benefit liabilities
lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive lncome for the Period, Net of Tax

Total Other Equity

18,445,516
(12.812.536)

1E,445,516 18,445,516

5,632,9E0

679,905

18,445,516

679.905

18,445,515

679,905

302,481

33.326.384

679,905

302,481

25.496.384

302,481

18.976.384
33,628,865

10,270,000

302,481

43.596.384

25,79E,E55

7,830.000

302,48'.1

33.326,384

19,278,865

6,520,000

302,481

25.496.384
43,898,855

3,150,800
118.085,041

33,62E,E65

3,150,800

25,798,865

3,150,800

26,519,291
96,755,525

121,236,841

70,236,2U

10,270,000
432,838

3,200,000
93,949

662.427

3,150,800

62,798,560

20,067,675
82,866,235

7,830,000
901,746

3,116,712
175,379
606.164

19,469,470
69,318,560

6,520,000

3,150,E00

37,660,631
12,188,459

14.659.214 12.630.001 6.520.000

82.096.311 70.236.234 62,798.560

89,843
307,958
(85.674)

(92,723)
252,932
(70.366)

(92,723)

312,127 89,843 192.7231

,Ft NFA O'O ilre r7,1 lea .r,ro lot-ot8

* mo
*



{7.1 Nature and purpose of regerve

I Equlty component of compound financial instrumente- Optlonally Gonveftible preference shares
Equig Component of Compound financial instruments represents Equity component of 8% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) having paid

value of Rs. 4,00,00,000. On transition to IND AS on 1 April, 2017 Rs. 1,84,45,516 was classified as Equity Component while Rs. 2,45,10,720
accrued interest Rs.29,56,236) was classified as Debt component.
Further, during the cunent year all the OCPS rrere converted into 8,51,061 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10 sach at a premium of Rs. 37 per

share.

2 IPO Dlscount glven by Holdlng company

During the year 2017-18, pursuant to initial public offering (lPO) and Offer For Sale, the Holding Company MAS Financial Services Limited had allotted

shares under Employee Reservation Category to the eligible employees of the company at a discount of Rs.45 per share on the offer price. The total

Rs. 679,905 has been considered as an Equity lnvestment by the Holding Company.

3 Reserve fund u/s. 294 of NHB Act, 1987:

Special Reserve has been created in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) of the income Tax Act,1961 out of the distributable profits of the company. As per Section

of NHB Act, 1987, the company is required to transfer at least 20o/o ol its net profits prior to distribution of dividend every year to a reserve. For this

any Special Reserve created by the company in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) of the income Tax Acl, 1961 is considered an eligible transfer.

4 Securltles premlum
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited Purposes in accordance with

provisions of section 52 the Companies Act, 2013.

5 Surplus In Statement of Proflt and Lose
Surplug in Statement of Profit and Loss is the accumulated available profit for the company carried fonrard from earlier years. These reserve are free

which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

6 Remeasurement of the defined benefit llabllltles
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities comprise actuarial gain or loss, retum on plan assets excluding interest and the effect of asset ceiling, if



$A' RURAL HOUSING E MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

ilores ronurrc pART oF THE FtNANctAL sTATEMENTs FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARcH 2019

(Amount ln O

Particulars
Year ended 31

March 2019
Year ended 31

March 2018

Note 18. lnterest lncome (On Financial assets measured at Amortised
Gost)
lnterest on Loans
lnterest on deposits with Banks
Other interest lncome
Total

Note 19. Other lncome
Net gain/(!oss) on derecognition of property, plant and equipment
lncome from non-financing activity
Total

Note 20. Finance Costs
(On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Gost)

lnterest on borowings
Other interest expense
Other borrowing cost
Total

Note 21, lmpairment on financial instruments
(On Financial lnstruments measured at Amortised Gost)

Loans
Loss Assets Written Off (Net of Recoveries)
Total

299,081,360
7,525,032

120,596

246,959,265
4,173,418

149,113
306,726,988 251,281,796

1,217
325,700
326,917

195,273,009

183,243,015
7,683,645
4,346,349

148,777,344
6,901,644

180 443
157,859,43

1,614,867
7,477,021

1,294,674
6,388,043

9,091,888 7,682,717

Note: The disclosure requirements of splitting the loss allowance between "individually" and "collectively' assessed
allowances as per lnd AS 107 is not applicable to the Company as it has determined los6 allo,vances on collective

Pasis only.



&bF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

(Amount in O
Particularc Year ended 31

March 2019
Year ended 31

March 2018

Note 22. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense
Staff welfare expenses
Others
Total

Note 23. Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total

Note 24. Other Expenses
Rent (Refer note no. 27)
Rates & Taxes

Stationery & Printing
Telephone
Electricity
Postage & Courier
lnsurance
Conveyance
Travelling
Repairs & Maintenance:

Others
Professional Fees (Refer note below)
Dl;'ecto/s Sitting Fees
Bank Charges
Advertisement Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses
Recovery Contract Charges
M iscellaneous Expenses
Total

N.ote: Paymeht to Statutory Auditors (including Taxes)
For Statutory Audit Fees
For Limited Review of Quarterly Results
For Other Services

45,529,104
1,892,980

504,127

1,073,963

40,423,193
1,539,546

310,078
689,038
679.905

49,000,174 43,641,760

3,079,170
87,183

4,292,880
86,1 1 4

3,166,353 4,378,994

6,316,303
879,424
694,982

1,107,408
605,499
159,397

275,795
2,544,377
1,136,275

889,756
6,887,443

275,000
259,613
938,287

16,646

1,302,564
896,366

4,909,092
1,265,078

407,299
1,317,803

337,901
143,400
331,728

1,863,605
954,089

229,553
5,917,823

235,000
407,553
814,670

98,247
1,261,848

790,204
25,184,135 21,284,893

125,000

76,500
248,550

162,500
162,500

120,500
450,050 445,500



flaF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
(Amount in O

Particulars Year ended 31

March 2019
Year ended 3l

March 2018

Note 25. Earnings Per Share
(A) Basic
Computation of Profit (Numerator)
Net Profit for the year
Less: Preference dividend including tax thereon
Net Piofit for the year attributable to Equity Shareholdens

Computation of Weighted Average Number of Shares (Denominator)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares of t10 each used for calculation of
Basic Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share of face value of (10 each (in O

(B) Diluted

Net Profit aftributable to Equity Shareholde/s as above
Computation of Weighted Average Number of Shares (Denominator)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares as above
Diluted Earnings per Share of face value of (10 each (in O

26,519,291
(3.836.781)

20,067,675
8.862.4271

22,682,510

Nos.

18,052,408
1.26

22,682,510
Nos.
18,052,408

1.26

16,205,248

Nos.

18,034,920
0.90

16,205,248
Nos.
18,034,920

0.90



sA, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTM|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

26 Addltlonal lnformation to the Flnanclal Statements:

A. Expenditure in Foreign Cunency - Nil
B. Eaming in Foreign Cunency - Nil
C. Disclosure as required in terms of Paragraph 5 of National Housing Bank Circular No. NHB/ND/DRS/PoI-No.35/2010-11

dated October 11,2010 and notification no. NHB.HFC.CG-D|R.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 09,2017 are given
Annexure A forming part of these Financial Statements.

27 Leaslngarrangements

Operating lease commitments - company as lessee
The Company has entered into leave and license agreements for taking offtce premises along with furniture and fixtures as a
and godown premises on rental basis ranging from 11 lo 72 months. The specified disclosure in respect of these agreements is g
below:

ln
st

Partlculars March 2019 March 2018

1. Lease nised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6,316,303 4,909,092
Note:- l.The company has given refundable, interest free security deposits under certain Agreements,

ii. Certain agreements contain a provision for their renewal and further there are no sub-leases.

The m leases are as follows:
Partlculars Year ended 31 Year ended 31

one year
one year but not more than five years

More than ftve years

28 Segment Reportlng:

The company is engaged primarily in the business of financing and all its operations are in lndia only. Accordingly, there is no
separate reportable segmeht as per lnd AS 108 on'Operating Segments'.

29 Related Party Dlsclosures:
(a) Related party disclosures as required by lndian Accounting Standard 24, "Related Party Disclosures"

Llst of related parties and relatlonships:

1

2
Hold
Key Management Personnel

Financial Services Limited
Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi (Whole time Director and Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Darshana S. Pandya (Director and Chief Operating Officefl
Mr. Bala Bhaskaran (lndependent directofl
Mr. Chetanbhai Shah (lndependent director)

3 Other related parties Mrs. Shweta K. Gandhi
Mr. SaumilD.

Transactlons with related partles aro aa follows:
ln

Yearended 31 March 2019

Partlcularc

Rent Expense
Recovery Contract charges paid
Expenditure reimbursed to
Reimbursement of Collection Received on behalf of
Remuneration (lncluding Bonus)
Dividend Paid

fees

Holding
Company

1,334,667
240,000

3,259,110
5,330,756

258,000
240,000

2,531J21
275

34,000
843,715

Tota!

1,334,667
240,000

3,259,110
5,330,756

271,000
3,632,836

Key management Other Related
personnel Partles

A

tE
t *



sAt RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2019

Year ended 31 March

Partlcularc Holdlng
Gompany

Key management Other Related
personnel

Rent Expense
Recovery Contract charges paid
Expenditure reimbursed to
Reimbursement of Collection Received on behalf of
Remuneration (lncluding Bonus)
Dividend Paid

fees

Balances outstandlng from related parties are as follows:

Partlculars

Loans and Advances given
Remuneration (lnduding Bonus) Payable

March 2019
Key management Other Related

personnel Partles

2,191,756

As at 31 March
Key management Other Related

perconnel Partles

1,200,000
240,000

2,660,344
941,292

537,500

Holdlng
Gompany

4,818,000
2,610,698

2,348,503
63,583

20,390,598

Key management
per:onnel

2,489,564
92,035

18,383,040

1,303,336
870,245

18,667
6,796,866

17,622
6,127,680

Partles
Total

1,200,000
240,000

2,460,344
941,292

6,121,336
4,018,t143

Total

2,191,756

Total

2,348,503
82,250

27,187,464
261

Total

2,489,564
109,657

24,510,720

1 001 1

PartlculattE

Loans and Advances given
Remuneration (lncluding Bonus) Payable
8% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

Holding
Gompany

Holding
Company

261 382

Asati 2017

Partlculars

Loans and Advances given
Remuneration (lncluding Bonus) Payable

32 Pursuant to the Private Placement offer letter ("Offer Document") dated March 1

shares on March 30, 2019 having face value of Rs. 10/- per share at a premium
of Rs. 10,99,99,881 towards private placement offer letter as of date.

Other Related
Partles

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
Guarantees 375 267

All transactions with these ptated parties are priced on an arm's length basis.

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other
term employee benefits recognised as per lnd AS 19 - Employee Benefits in the financial statements. As these employee benefits
lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.

Transactlons wlth key management personnelare as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 3l

Postemployment benefits
Other long term employment benefits

- The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
individuals and market trends.

30 The Company has not feceived any intimation from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006. ln view of this, information required under section 22 of MSMED Act, 2006 to that extent is
given.

3l During the year, allthe optionally convertible instruments were converted into Equity Shares as per agreements, amended from time
to time, in the following manner:
8olo Optionally Convertible'Preference Shares were converted into 8,51,061 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10 each at a
premium of Rs. 37 per equity share.

8, 2019, the Company has allotted 2,340,423
of Rs. 37/- The Company has raised total

ASS

1\

d
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2019

33 The Board of directors recommended dividend of t 0.05/- per equity share of face value of (10 each, which is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company. Dividend on 8% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares upto the date of its conversion is also
proposed in the meeting. The amounts of dividend and dividend distribution tax are as follows:

in

34 Details of Total Non-Performing Assets (NPA) and o/o of Total Assets Under Management (AUM) (including assigned assets) are as
follow:

in

35 Total amount of assigned assets outstanding as per books of the company (excluding accrued interest) as on 31st March 2019 is Rs.
2,34,30,240/-. Dues to assignees towaids collections from assigned receivables as on 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 369,520/-.

36 Balances of trade payables and loans and advances are subject to confirmation. Adjustments, if any required, will be made on- 
settlement of the account of the parties.

37 The company has sanctioned but undisbursed amount of loans amounting to Rs 857.95 lacs as on the date of balance sheet which
are to be disbursed during the normal course of business.

Partlculars
Dlvldend
Proposed

Divldend
Dlstrlbutlon Tax

Total

Equity Shares 1,061,320 218,207 1,279,528

8% Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares 3,182,466 654,315 3,836,781

Partlculara As at 31.03.2019 As at 3{.03.2018
AUM
Gross NPA on AUM
Net NPA on AUM
Gross NPA as % of AUM
Net NPA as % ofAUM

27,120.22
97.87
79.35
0.36%
0.29o/o

20,395.38
74.07
55.55
0.360/o

0.27o/o



Effect of offsettins on the balance sheet Related amount not offset

Particularc
Gross amounts Gross amount

off set in
balance sheet

Net amount
presented in

balance sheet

Amount subiect
to master netting
of arrangement

Financial
instrument
collateral

Net amount

3l March 2019

Loans and advances

31 March 2018

Loans and advances

I April20{7
Loans and advances

2,650,981,849

1,993,902,775

1.716.668.616

9,576,600 2,641,405,249

1,993,902,775

1,716.668.616

16,575,000

128,472,150

77,186,665

2,624,830,249

1,865,430,625

1,639,481,951

Following table represents the recognised financial assets that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting arrangeme
and other similar arangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2019,31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017. The column'net
shows the impact of Company's balance sheet if all the set'off rights were exercised.

{ 9,576,600 (31 March 2018: t NlL, 1 April 2017: < NIL) advances received against loan agreements is offset aga
loans and advances.

< 16,575,000 (31 March 2018: < 128,472,150, 1 Apri! 2017: < 77,186,665) security deposits received from borrowers is

not offset against loans and advances.
2

1

38 Offsetting

Note
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Jf.b, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIM|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2019

40 Employee benefit plan

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under lnd AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:

(a) Deflned Gontrlbutlon Plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the company pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions. The Company's contribution to Provident Fund aggregating < 13,22,816 (31 March 2018: t
10,46,511) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

(b) Deflned Beneflt Plans:

Gratulty

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligibte employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Ac/., '1972. Under the act, employee who has completed live years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The
level of benefits provided depends on the membe/s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as Actuariat risk, Investment risk, Liquidity risk, Market risk,
Legislative risk. These are discussed as follows:

Actuarlal Rlsk: lt is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escatation will result into an increase in
Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Varlability in mortality rates: lf actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits will be
paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an
actuarial loss or gain dependin$ on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: lf actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits
will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

lnvestment Rlsk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not
be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. ln such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount
rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during
the inter-valuation period.

Llquldlty Risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. lf
some of such employees resigrVretire from the company there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market Rlsk: Market risk is a collective term.for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields
on the corporate/govemment bonds and hence the valuation of liabitity is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Leglslatlve Rlsk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to
the employees. This wil! directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized
immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.
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sAt RURAL HOUSTNG & iTORTGAGE FTNANCE LriflTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARCH 2019

The status of gratuity plan as required under lnd AS-19 is as under:
(Amount ln

lv. Composltlon of plan aesets
100% of plan assets are administered by LlC.

Partlculars As at
3l March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

17,419
(392,465)

66,141

863,151

568,713

701,015

384,307

19,028

50,615

(232,671

(59,143)

1.122.959 863.151

1,417,568

130,727
(67,088)

30,097

824,596

73,506
(38,882)

558,348
,t,51{,304 1,417,568

'1,122,959

1,51 1,304

863,151

1,417,568
388,345 554,417

l. Reconclllatlon of Openlng and Closlng Balances of deflned benefit obllgatlon

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the year

Cunent Service Cost

Past service Cost

lnterest Cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

Change in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Present value of deflned beneflt obllgatlone at the end of the year

ii. Reconclllatlon of openlng and closlng balances of the falr value of plan
asseta

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
lnterest lncome

Retum on plan assets exduding amounts included in interest income
Contributions by employer

Falr value of plan asseE at the end of the year

lil. Reconclllatlon of the present value of deflned benefit obllgatlon and falr
value of plan assetg
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net agset I (llablllty) recognlzed ln balance sheet as at the end of the year

Partlcularc
For the year
ended 31

March 20{9

For the year
ended 31

March 20{8
v. Expense recognlsed durlng the Year

Cunent seruice cost

lnterest Cost'
Past service Cost

Expenses recognised in the income statement

vl. Other Comprehenslve lncome
Components of actuaria! galnflosses on obligations:

Due to Change in linancial assumptions- 
Due to experience adjustments

Retum on plan assets exduding amounts induded in interest income

. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

568,713
(o4,586)

313,941

(22,891)

19,028

50/.,127 310,078

17,419
(392,465)

67,088

(59,143)

(232,671)

38,882
(307,958) (252,9321

ma
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g^F RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTM|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Particulars
As at

31 March 20{9
As at

31 March 2018

vii. Prlnclpal actuarla! assumptlons
Discount Rate (per annum)

Rate of Return on Plan Assets (p.a.)

Annual lncrease in Salary Cost
WithdrawalRates

7.600/o

7.600/o

7.00o/o

3olo of younger
ages reducing
lo 1o/o at older

ages

7.700/o

7.70o/o

7.OOo/o

3o/o 
"l 

younger
ages reducing
lo 1o/o at oldel

ages

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of lndia's bond as at the balance sheet date for the
term of the obligations.

viil. Sensltivity Analysls
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obtigation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
mortatity. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring
the end of the reporting period, while holding al! other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019

Partlcularc
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 11

Forthe yearended 3l March
2018

863,151

Partlculars

Discount Rate -/+0.
(Yo compared to base due to

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 0.5%)

nd Following year

Following Year

Following Year
3rd

Sth Following Yeal
Sum of years 6 to 10

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows

The Expected contribution for the next year is ( 554797

Forthe year ended 3t March 2019

Decrease

Forthe yearended 3l March
2018

lncrease Decrease lncrease
16,031 1,039,550 929,214 803

8.29o/o -7.43o/o 7.650/o -6.91olo

1

0.23o/o

0.33o/o

2.610/o

0.56%
2.740/o

3.66%

1

1

(c) Other long term employee beneflts
The actuarial liabili$ for compensated absences
respectively.

1 13

11,000

15,775

125,565

27,176
132,035
1 246

31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is < 1,34,933 and ( 8,52,

803 10 928,632
(o/o to base due to -7.3OYo 8.04o/o -6.91% 7

WithdrawalRate .R. W.R. x90o/o.lW.R. x 110Yol 1,124,828 1,120,980 864,972 861 270
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.17o/o -0.18o/o 0.21o/o -0

lx. Asset Llablllty Matchlng Strategles

The Company contributes to the insurance fund based on estimated liability of next financialyear end. The projected liability statements
is obtained from the actuailalvaluer.

x. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

a) Fundlng arrangements and Funding Policy
The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the i

Company canies out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising
as a result of such vatuation is funded by the Company.

b) ilaturlty Proflle of Defined Benefit Obllgation

The Average Outstanding Term of the Obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 14.43 years

Partlculars Cash flows G) Dlstrlbution (%)

undlscounted basls):
1st Following Year

as at the

s
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NOTES FORMTNG PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2019

41 Flnanclal lnstrument and Falr Value Measurement

A. Accountlng classlflcatlons and falr values

The carrying amount and fair value of financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy presented below:

Garrylng

(Amount ln Q

As at 31 March 2019 cost Fair value
3 Total

Flnanclalassets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash
equivalents
Loans
Security deposits
lnterest Accrued on Loans and Advances

412,289,043 412,289,043

192,533
2,641,405,249

1,190,500

192,533
2,641,405,249

1,190,500 1,098,716 1,098,716
15 1

Financlal llabllities
Trade Payables
Debt Securities
Bonowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other financial Iiabilities

2,534,410,639 2,534,410,639 2,534,410,639 2,534,410,639
644 785 947

As at 31 March 2018
Carrying
amount

Amortlsed
cost Falr value

Level 1 Level 2 3
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash
equivalents
Loans
Security deposits
lnteresl Accrued on Loans and Advances

114,228,298 114,228,298

322,615
1,993,902,775

1,206,555

322,615
1,993,902,775

1,206,555 1 ,1 13,533 1 ,1 13,533
12 1 1

Financlal liabilities
Trade Payables
Debt Securities
Bonowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other financial liabilities

1,697,499,835 1,697,499,835 1,697,499,835 1,697,499,835
141 141 342

As-at 1'Aprll 2017
Carrying
amount

Amortised
cost Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Flnanclal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash
equivalents
Loans
Security deposits
lnterest Accrued on Loans and Advances

106,749,228 106,749,228

155,671
1,716,668,616

954,329

155,671
1,716,668,616

954,329 880,753 880,753
11 173 11 173

1 71 1 7

Flnanclal llabilitiee
Trade Payables
Debt Securities
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other fi nancial liabilities

1,499,227,502 1,488,227,502 1,488,227,502 1,488,227,502
1 776 1
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B. Measurement of falr values

i) Valuatlon technlques and slgnificant unobservable lnputs

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabitities which are at amortised cost are considered to be the same as their fair values as there is
no materialdifferences in the carrying values presented.

ii) Financlal instruments - falr value

The fair value of financial instruments as refened to in note (A) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used
in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1

measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level3 measurement).

The catogods! used arB as follorYa:

L6vol 1: Level t hlerardry includes flnanclal lnst umanb mgasurgd u8lng quoted prices;

Lov€l 2: Th€ tah value ot finsnclel lnstrumenb that aie not Ead€d ln 8dlvo martet b detBrmlned uslng vsluation technhus ufildl msrmiz$ th€
u6e of o0s€rvabl6 martet data and rsly as llltlo 88 posslblo on enuty Epedfc eslimatos. lf all significant lnputs requllBd to fair valus on
instrumont a€ obs€rvablo, the lnstrument l5 lncluded ln level 2; and

Level 3: lf one or more oI significant lnput 18 not basod on ob8ervable mE.tel data, ths insfumgnt 18 lnclud€d ln level 3.

Ill) Tr.mirE botwoon lowb I lnd ll

Th€Ie has been ng tran8igr in b€tv€en level I 8nd lewl ll.

l.v) Vllurtlon t chnlqucr

S.curlty dop6lt!

The Company has fair valued the security deposit using normal market rate of interest as on relevant date using cash flow method approach

B. Capltal

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacl
requirements of the locat HFC regulator, National Housing Bank (NHB). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, amon!
otlier measures, the regulations issued by NHB.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital and other equity
are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management.

I Capltal Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. ln order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders, retum capitalto shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes

from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

2 Regulatory capltal

Particularc 2019 2018 2017

Tiert Capital
Tier 2 Capital
TotalGapital

RlSk weighted assets
Tier 1 CapitalRatio (%)
TotalCaoital Ratio (%)

447,696,499
11.679.550

272,015,830
50.810.801

255,130,865
49.534.667

304.665,533

27.68
28.40

26.81
31.82

28.51
34.04
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a2 Fln.nolal dah nmagamant oblactlv.. and pollol..

Th. Compaly. prlndpd nnendal ll.HlliLr com!.lrr lo.nt and bo.rDwlne!, lEdc erl(, otlEr pay.blc!. Thc nl.ln Fllpoa. ol lhc!. fnancial liabillliaa b b llnancc 016

Cdnpava orardioaa ant b appoat nt op..8tlmi. Tlla Conp.nya n l€rdal $$lt lndudc loen ra edv.nc6r, celh .nd oa.h .qulv.ldrt tha[ d.rivt dll.dy itlm lta
oosalio .

Compenya ful nErEgarmnt pollcloa. Tha commltaa rcrorlr r€lulrly t0 tha board ot dIldor! on ll! ectlvlllra.

Tha C,orn9m/r adh cornortar o{€E€.r how msEeafir€nt nlonllon cdnpll.nc. wlth lh. Companf! dlk niau0.ridt polldaa *ld procadull, 8nd .wl.w. lha

eudll unda.El(!. Do0i ltCular rd ad hoc rai6r' ol rial n$aCamaar coit ola afil p,!ca(lr!a, th€ llrult! ofwfil.h .rc rrgoalcr, b thc &dlt conmi[oa.

1) c$dlr Rl.k

liorn tl. Com9a4lt r!calv.bl.. liDm ql.bma! ald loana.

Tho Cdne€Iyt argo.u! b arsdlt rt k la lnfhrdcad malnly by tha hdivldual &anail dcr ofoadr qdo.naa. Hoxq/*, manegament ello conaidara tfl. ractoG lllel m.y
lnfluanoa tha arudll alak 0f lt. qllbmar bar6, lndudhg the ddault d!* 8!!ocl.t!d wl$ $. lndufy.

lnfoirailon, hdudry kfuma[on alld ln lonl calct bank rulbGnc.!.

Th. Cdlu€rya .xporNr! io .,rdn dlk lbr loina and advencas by typa d courfiDqdy la al tollorJ.:
(Amoum h O

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Loans and adltancB,s

Carrylng Amount
1 Aprll 2017PartlculslB 31 March 2019 3l March 2018

1,164,712,570
561.539.652

1,677,487,532
976.410.84f

1,364,458,986

640.322.070
Retailcustomer
Wholesale customer

2.653.898.396 2.004.781.056 1.726.252.222Total

An tmpalllrEt er.tyrlt la p.rrodFd at aach rapo.tine dat bd6d m lhc lbcb .nd durrd{lc.. ri.tng on th.l dda io idaniity oxpelcd lo!r.. cr account ol tlm.
vetrr. of morry end crldtt rt!k. For th. pupoaaa d tNa flalyala, tha loar llcalwuaa ars caLgodlrd lnto g.oupr b6!.d oi day! pad dua, Eadr grulp b ttrn aataaaad

conaidafi aatual ldatorical data adju{ad aperoFl.t ly ,0. th. liJturr .re..tatlona .ld lobabllilL!. Propoalhn a, €rp€dad arEdlt lolr Pro{Ucd for aqo.3 tl6 .gElng
b{ckcl! la allllsllcd balow:

(Amount ln t)
3l March 2019 3l March 2018Days past due

O.20o/o

5.87o/o

27.570/o

12.493.147

0.18%

6.57o/o

30.02o/o

10,878,281

Stage I

Stage.lll
Stage lll
Amount of oxpectod cradlt loss provlded for

Tha lo$ Etaa d! balad m actual .lrdlt lo!3 cxpcdo.roa wrr p.al yGda. Tlcta lort rdaa an lhan adju&d appropriaLly to lrfioct dll€rBnce3 baftvaari qfiant and

lo!! hea baan Fovldcd ln balow ,Dlc.

liovrm. onECk (Amosntln tl
Partlculanr 2018-19 2017-18

10,878,2E1

1,614,E66

9,583,606
1,294,675

12,493,147 10,878.2E1

Opening provision of ECL

Addition during the year

Closlng provlslon of ECL

Cash and cash equlvalent and Bank deposlts

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits is limited as the Company generally invests in term deposits with banks.

2l Llquldlty Rlsk

llquldlty lr io .rl!u! M lt will hava tljfidart funda to r'Dral it! liablliliaa whsr du€.

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of tunds by estimating the future cash flows. The Companl/s objeclive is to maintain a balance between continuity of
and flexibility through the use of cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company has accass to a sufficient variety of sources of funding.

The composition of the Compan/s liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattem and well diverse resource mix.

' Capital ad'equacy ratio of the Company, as on 31 Marclr 2019 is 28.40oh against regulatory norms of 12o/o. Tier I capital is 27.680/o. Tier ll capital is 0.72% which
from time to time depending on the requirement and also as a source of structural liquidity to strengthen asset liability maturity pattem.

cash credit limit available to the Company is ( 1700 lakhs spread across 2 banks. The utilization level is maintained in such a way that ensures suflicient

A
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AposrrrD 6 {$fryritx

v'lu"t tt Bel,,ct shcct det' 
ranount rn <l

Partlculrrr
t d.y to 30131

drys (ono
month)

Over one
monthto 2

monthr

OYer 2 month3
up to t montht

Ovor 3 monthr
to I montht

Over 0 monthr
to I yo.r

Over I yo.r to S

yerrt
OYor 3 yo.r to 5

yoarr
Over 5 yerrs Tot.l

As at March 31, 2019

Debt Securities

Bonowings
Trade Payable

As at March 31, 2018

Debt Securitles

Bonowings
Trade-Payable

As atAprll 1,2017
Debt Securities

Bonowings
Trade Payable

39,344,303
4.671,U1

47,576,098
3,879,562

22,636,780
2.006.247

38,928,889

9,786,702

6,897,421

115,531,697

57,838,370

5'.1,1U,624

123,545,008

87,562,196

90,849,999

411,930,365

323,747,323

217,055,701

1,250,104,308

800,986,854

566,277,063

423,991,775

278,486,019

338,362,584

131,034,293

91,516,272

195,043,330

2,534,410,639

4,671,6r'.'l

1,697,499,835

3,879,562

1,488,227,502
2,406,247

Market Rlsk

Market risk ls the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluduate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes interest

risk and forelgn cu,rency risk. The obJedive of markel risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, u,hile

the retum.

1) lnterost Rate rlrk

lnterest rttte risk ie the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

The interest rates for the tenure of the fixed deposits are fixed. However, with the continuous decrease in the retums on fixed deposits, the income eamed on

deposits may change in ftrture based on the interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis have been canied out based on the exposure to interest rates for bank deposits, lending and bonowings canied at variable rate.

ln

Partlcularc As At 3l March 2019

Change in interest rates 50 bp increase 50 bp decrease

Variable rate lending

lmpac{ on Prolit for the year
2,653,898,396

10,063,303

2,653,898,396
(10,063,303)

2 1

on Profit for the

.2) Forclgn Cunency Rlsk
The company does not have any instrument denominated or traded in foreign curency. Hence, such risk does not affect the company.

rr
E
t

A

(fi
a
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43 Revenue from contracts with customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to profit and loss account:
(Amount in

Particularc
For the year ended

3l March 2019
For the year ended 31

March 2018

Type lncome

Services charges

Others

Totat revenue from contracE wlth customep
17,053,563 12,173,751

17,053,563 12.173,751

Geographlca! marketc

lndia

Outside lndia

Total revenue from contracts with iustomers

17,053,563 12,173,7-51

17 12,173,751

of revenue rccognltion

Services transfened at a point in time

Services transfered over time

17,053,563 12,173,7-51

reyenue from contracts wlth customers 17,053,563 1 173,751

44 There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
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,l5 Erplanatlon to tnnrltlon to lnd As

Ag stated in NotE 2, thes€ are the Companyrs first fnancial stabments prepared in accordance with lnd AS. For the year ended
31 March 2018, the company had prepar€d its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, notifiod undEr Section 1 33 of the Ac't and other Glevant provisions of the Act ('previous GAAP').

The accounting policies set oul in Nota 3 hav6 been applied in pltparing these ,inancial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 induding the comparative infomation ior the year end€d 31 March 2018 and the opening lnd AS balanoe she€t on the date
of tramition i.a. 1 Nrll2017 -

In preparing lhe lnd AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2017 and in prBsenting the comparativo information for the year endod 3l
March 2016, the Company has adjusted amounb reported previously in the financial statementr prepaEd in accotdance with
pasvlous GAAP. This notE explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in Estating its tinancial statements
pl?palEd in accordance with prgvious GAAP, and how lhe transltion from previous GAAP to lnd AS has 8ffecled ths company'e
fnancial posruon, linancial performance and caSh frows.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions

A. Optional exemptions availed

Propefi plant and equipmint and intangibte assets

. As per lnd AS 101 an entity may elect to:

(i) measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its
deemed cost at that date

(ii) use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed
cost at the date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to:

- fair value;
- or cost or depreciated cost under lnd AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index.

The elections under (i) and (ii) above are also available for intangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in lnd AS 38,
lnfangible Assets, (including reliable measurement of original cost); and criteria in lnd AS 38 for revaluation (including the
existence of an active market).

(iii) use carrying values of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties as on the date of transition
to lnd AS (which are measured in accordance with previous GAAP and after making adjustments relating to decommissioning
liabilities prescribed under lnd AS 101) af there has been no change in its functionalcurrency on the date of transition.

As permitted by lnd AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the
items of property, plant and equipment. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets also.

AA

t mo
rt
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B. Mandatory exceptions

1. Accounting estimates

As per lnd AS 101, an entity's estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date of transition to lnd AS at the end of the
comparative period presented in the entity's first lnd AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per lnd AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under
previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening
lnd AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per lnd AS).

The Company's estimates under lnd AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of
the financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- lmpaimEnt of financial assriG based on the €xp€ct€d crsdit loss model.
- Deb,mination of the discounted value br financial instruments carfied at amortBed cost.

2, Delrcognluon of flnanclal a33ot3 and llabllltles

As per lnd AS 101, an sn{ty should apply the derecognition rcquir3menB in lnd AS 109, Financial lnstruments, prospeclively for
transadions occuning on or afrer the dale of transruon to |rd AS. However, an entity may apply the derecognition r€quirements
Gtro3p€ctively fom a daE chosen by it if the infomation ne€ded to apply lnd AS 109 to financial as€€tr and financial liabilities
deBcognised as a result of past tmnsadione wss obtained st the time of initially accounting for tho3€ transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition criteria for financial assets/liabilities prospectively. Hence, it has not
recognised any financia! assdts/financial liabilities previously de-recognised.

3. Glassification and measurement of financial assets

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on
the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financia! assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts
and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective applicatlon is impracticable.

Accordingly, the company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on
the date of transition.

4, lmpallmont of flnanclal assots

The Company being a HFC is rsquir€d to assess the impairment of financial assob based upon the new model i.e. ECL instead
of rule based guidance (NHB Prudential Noms) as prevailed under pr€vious GMP.
Accordingly, the Company has applied the impalment Bquirement of lnd.As 109 on all financial assets recognised as per lnd-
AS lOg retrospectively except:

1. The Company has sought to approximate tho credit risk on initial recognition by considedng all reasonable and supportable
infomation that i8 available without undu€ cost or efort.

2. The Company has determined whether the financial asset is having low credit risk, as specified in lnd-AS 109, and whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of financial assets by applying rebuttable presumption of 30
days past due.

3. lf the Company is unable to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
financial asset, without involving undue cost or effort, the Company shall recognise a loss amount equal to life time expected
losses at each reporting date till the financial asset is derecognised.

Accordingly, the Company has to develop ECL model for testing of impairment of loans and advances.
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Reconclllation of equlty*
(Amount ln (l

Particularc Note

at ,na2017 Asat3l March2018

Prevlous
GAAP#

Adiustment on
transition to

lnd AS
lnd AS

Prevlous
GAAFT

Adjustment on
transltlon to

tnd AS
lnd AS

ASSETS
Flnanclalassets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other Financial assets
Tota! Flnanclal Acse8

Non-Flnanclal Asset3
lneome tax a3sets (net)

Defered tax Assets (Ne0
Property, Plant and Eguipment
Other lntangible assets
Other non-financial assets

Total Non Flnancial Assets

Total Agsete
LIABLMESAND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Flnanclal LiablllUes
Payables
Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises

Borowings (o(her than Debt Securities)
Deposits
Other fi nancial liatrilities

Total Flnanclal Llablllties
Non-Flnanclal Llabilitles
Provisions
Defened tax liabilities (Net)
Other non-fi nancial liabilities

Totat Non Financlal LlabltiUes

Total Llabillties
EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other Equity

TotalEqutty

Tota! Llabllltles and Eoultv

2,3(a),4,'5

8

1,7

3(b),6

I

1to9

106,749,228
155.671

1,719,593,641

12.739.502

(2,925,O25)

106,749,228
155,671

1,716,668,616

12.739.502

114,228,298
322,615

1,998,207,859

13.488.16'l

(4,305,084)

114,228,298
322,6'.t5

1,993,902,775

13.488.161
l-830.238.042 (2.925.025t r.836.313.017 2.128.248.933 {4-305.0841 2-121.911-819

908,725

't5.755,425
63,653

s03 081

11,617,205
908,725

11,617,205
15,755,425

63,653
903.081

1,698,698

12,229,406
167,539

3.526_253

11,660,063

(19.028)

1,698,698
11,660,063
12.229.406

167,539
3.507.225

7-630-884 I t _6t 7-205 20-248.089 17.62t.896 11.641.035 29-2e2-931

8-6e2-.t80 l_865_58{-t06 2.r43.868.820 7.335.95' 2-1A1_201-780

2,006,247

1,464,427,970

83.133.776

23,799,532

2,006,247

1,488,227,502

83 r33 776

3,879,562

1,670,269,994

141 223 342

27,229,841

3,879.562

1,697.499.835

141.22g.U;
l-549.567.993 23.799.532 .t-573-387-525 r-8t5-372-8e8 27-229.841 1.842.602.739

736,686
5.648.606
r 006 677

(s,648,606)
736,686

1_006.677

852,093
6.378,546
1.'t 69.585

(6,378,546)
852,093

'r 163.585

7.391.969 15-648-8061 .t-743-363 8.&O-224 t6.378.5461 2-021-878

1.556.959.982 18.150.926 .t-575-.HO-888 1-423-773.122 20.851.296 1.8U.624.417

180,349,200
119.559.764 (s 458 746)

1E0,349,200
r 1 0.1 0t .018

1E0,349,200
139.746.507 (13.515.345)

180,349.200
126.231.'.t62

299.908.964 {9.458.7481 2go-450_218 320_095-707 It3.515.3451 306.580.362

I _858_868-926 8.692.t80 1.865.56{.106 2.143.888.829 7-335-05t 2-151-201.780
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Reconciliation of Total Gomprehensive lncome for the year ended 31 March 2018 *

(Amount in O

Particulars Note Previous GAAP #
Adjustment on

transition to
lnd AS

lnd AS

l. Revenue from operations

!nterest lncome
Fees and commission lncome
Total Revenue from operations

Total lncome

ll. Expenses
Finance Costs
Fees and commission expenie
lmpairment on financial instruments
Employee Benefits Expenses
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Others expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - ll)
lll. Profit Before Tax

lV. Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Net tax expense

V. Profit After Tax for the pe.rlod (lll - lV)

Vl. Other Comprehensive lncome for the Period
(A) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities
lncome tax impact on above
Total

Other Gomprehensive lncome (A+B)

V!!. Total Gomprehenslve lncome for the Period (V + Vl)

3(a), 4,
5

3(b), 6

2
1,9

8

1

1

7
7

252,454,342
12.950.062

(1,172,546\
(t776.3111

251,281,796
12.173,751

265,404,404 (1,948,857) 263.455.547

265,404,404 (1.948.857) 263.455,547

154,429,122

8,251,516
42,760,261
4,378,994

21.284.893

3,430,309

(568,799)
881,499

157,859,431

7,682,717
43,641,760
4,378,994

21,284,893
231,104,785 3.743.010 234,847,795

34,299.619 (5,691,867) 28.607.752
34,299,619

8,582,935
729,940

(5,691,867)

072,798)

28,607,752

8,582,935
(42.858)

9,312,875 (772,7981 9,540,077

24,986,7U (4,919,069) 20.067,675

252,932
(70.366)

252,932
(70,366)

182,566 182,566

182,566 182.566

24,986,7U (4,736,503) 20,250.241

. lnd AS 1Ol requires IBconciliatons of ils equity reported ln accodanca with pr"vious C'AAP to its equity in acoodance wlth lnd AS and

I roconciliation to ils total compEhenslw lncoms in accordance with lnd AS for th€ latsst psriod in the entity's most recent annual
inancial stalom€nts. Tho oompany has chosen to provld€ rsconciliation of amount reported ln ac@rdance with prevlous GAAP to
smount r8port6d und6r lnd AS for each lin€ itsm of balanc€ sheet end statemenl of profit and loss as an sdditional dlsclGuro.

# The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to lnd AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.



fibF RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LrMrrED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Notes to the reconciliations

l) Actuadel galn .nd lorg
Under lnd AS, all actuarlal gains and losses ar3 recognised in other comprehenslve income. Under previous GAAP, tho
Company Ecognised ac-tuarial gains and losses in profit or loss. Howaver, this has no major impad on the total compEhensive
income and total equity as on 1 April 2017 or as on 31 March 2018.

2) LoE..llow.nco
Under pr€vious GMP, tho company has crBated povision for impainnent of loans to customer as pEr the guidelines specified by
NHB. Undor lnd AS, th6 Company has recognised impairmsnt lo$ on loans based on the expected credit loss (ECL) model Es
.requircd by lnd AS 109. Con86qu6nty, ths company has roverB€d its ECL on loans and advances by ( 12,15,500 on 1 April
2017 which has b€€n addsd to r€talned oamings. Similady provision for ECL of < 5,68,799 has been r€vors€d in the statement
of profit and loes for the year ended on 31 Mardr 201 8.

3) ErR

a) Under provious GMP, transaclion cost charged to qJstomE6 w€ra Fcognissd upfront while under lnd AS, such co8ts ars
induded in the initial recogniton amount of financial asset and rocognised as inErest income using effective intBrest method.

consequently, loan to customer on the date of tran6ition as on 1 April 2017 have decraassd by { 1,13,01,001 which has

been eliminaEd against retained eamings. The impact of < 7,7A311 lot the year ended on 31 March 2018 haE bsen
rocognised in the stabment of profit and loss.

b) Undor provious GAAP, tansadion cost incu od on borrowings \rverE amortized over the tenurs of the loan on sbaight-lino
basis whilo undsr lnd AS, such cost are included in ths initial recognition amount of financial assets and recognised as
interest exp€ns€ using efbciivE lntsreEt method. Consequently, borro$rings on the dab of transition date have decr€8so by <

7,11,188 and inbrest 3)eens€s for the year ondsd 31 March 2018 has increase by < 7,53,565.

4) lnbrcst rcyettal on Sbgo 3 Recalvables
Under pr€vious GAAP, the Company did not accrue interest on Stage 3 r€coivabbs. Under IND AS, tha Company has

rscognized intersst on Stage "3 Receivables l€sulting into income of < 7,07,384 on the dab of transition which has bsen
recognised in retained eamings. Ths income lBvarsal of ? 2,84,164 for the year ended 31 March 2018 has b€6n adiusEd againsl
.staEment of profit and loss.

5) Aaslgnment of Loan Portfollo
Tho Compsny derecognizes th6 loan portiolio assignsd to assignees. Under previous GAAP, inbl€st income spEad on the loan
portfolio assigned (net of minimum rebntion ratio) was r€cognized as and when it was accrued, i.e., over the life of the loan
given. Under lnd AS, such inb]€st income is rgcognized upfront i.e., at the time of assignment transadion.

This has resulted in increase in equity as,on 1 April 2017 by ( 04,53,091 and as on 31 Match 2018 by < 55,64,709.

6) Gonvertible lnstruments

Linder previous GAAP, convertible instruments were disclosed at their carrying amount. Under lnd AS, these instruments are
segregatod into Equity and financial liability measured at amortisod cost as per lnd AS 32. Accordingly, on the dats of transfion,
a net impact of T 15,489,280 on account of equity portion of convsrtibls instumenb has been added to r€tained earnin$ and <
24,510,720 debt ponion has be€n disclosed as liability. Vvtile for the year ended 3l Marcfi 2018, an impact of t 26,76,7.14 has
b€en l€cognised in Statement of Profit and Loss being inbrest on debt portion of convertible instruments.

7) Oth3r complthenslv. lncome
Under previous GAAP, the company has not pras€nbd other comprehensive income (OCl) separatsly. Hence, it has r€concilsd
lndian GAAP profit or loss to profit or pncft or loss as per lnd AS. Furher, lndian GAAP proflt or loss is rEconciled to total
comprehansivg income as p€r lnd AS.

A
v

t mo
+



gbr RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

8) Deferred Tax

lndian GAAP r€quires daEned tax accounting using the stabmant of profit and loss approach, which focuses on difbrEnces
betrwen taxabls prorits and accounting profib for tha p€riod. lnd AS 12 l€quires entities to account for defensd taxes using the
balancs shEst approach, which focuses on tomporary difforancss bstur€En the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balancs shs€t and its tax bas€. The applicauon of lnd AS '12 approach haE resultEd in rscognilion of defen€d tax on new
temporary diffor€ncss arising on account of transfional differEnces adjustmants which wsrE not ,€quiBd under lndian GAAP.

According to tha accounting policies, the company has to account ior such diffarancas. Dgfened tax adiusfnents are recognissd
in corrslation to thE undsrlying tansac-tion either ln retained earnings or a soparatE component of equity.

9) IPO Dl.count glyon by Holdlng company

During ths Wat 2017-19, pursuant to initial public ofEring (lPO) and Offer For Sale, the Holding Company MAS Financial
Sawicas Limibd had allotted equity ghares under Employee Ros€rvation Category to the eligible employees of the company at a

.discount of Rs.45 per share on thE offer price. The total discount Rs. 679,905 has bEon considerod as an Equity lnvostrnent by
lhe Holding Company.

ln terms of our report attached
For Rajpara & Associates
Chartered Accountants

o\N

Jay Soni
Partner
Membership No.174165

Place:Ahmedabad
Date : 24 Apri|2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
1fA, Rural Housing and Mortgage Finance Ltd.

l

t

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(Chairman & Managing Director)

(DrN - 00044852)

Mukesh C. Gandhi
Financial Officer)
(DrN - 00187086)

G

Darshana S.
(Director & Chief Operating Office0
(DrN - 07610402)

a

Da lHiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: A47986)

Place: Ahmedabad
Date : 24 April, 2019

(Whole Time D



Sr.
No.

Item As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

1 CRAR (%) 2S.40eh 31.82%
2 CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 27.680/o 26.81%
3 GRAR - Tier ll CaDital (%) O.72o/o 5.01%

4
Amount of subordinated debt raised as

Tier- llCapital

5
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual

Debt lnstruments

Sr.
No-

Partlcularc As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

,| No of SPVs sponsored by the company for securitization
transactions

Nit Nit

2
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs

sponsored by the company
Nit Nil

3
Total amount of exposures retained by the company to comply

with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a) Ofr-balance sheet exposures Nit Nit
. First loss Nit Nit
. Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures Nit Nit
. First loss Nil Nit
. Others

4 Amount of exoosures to securitization transactions other than
a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i) Exoosure to own securitizations
. First loss Nit Nit
. Others Nil Nil

ii) Exoosure to third oartv securitizations
. First loss Nit Nit
. Others Nit Nit

b) On-balance sheet exoosures
i) Exposure to own securitizations

. First loss Nit Nit
. Others Nit Ni

iD Exposure to third oartv securifzations
. First loss Nit Nit
. Others Nit Ni

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 3l March 20i8

r No. of a@ounts Nit Nit

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC Nit Nit

Nil Nil

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transfened in
earlier years .

Nil Nit

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book Value Nit Nit

ANNEXURE A: (FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS}

as required in terms of Paragraph 5 of National Housing Bank Circular No.NHB/ND/DRS/PoI-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 11, 2010 and notification no.
CG-DIR.1 /MD&CEO/201 6 dated,February Og, 2017 .

lhe inbmation ln thlB Anne)(lre lE to be povlded a8 pgr tho ator€mor$oied NHB Cirqisr snd Notifcalion, it i3 pr€!€nted aB per the exlant povisions of Nalional
Bank Act 1987 and Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions 2010 including ftamework on Prudential Norms, and other related Circulars

etc., issued in this regard by the NHB from time to time and not as per the provisions of IND AS. This is in compliance with NHB Circular no.
D)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated June 14, 2018.

Caoltalto Rlsk Assets Ratto as on 31't March 20{9

I!INVESTMENT

company does not have any outstanding investments at the beginning or at the end of the year.

III DERIVATIVE

Company has not entered into any Derivative transactions.

rv sEguRrTrzATtoN

For Securltlzatlon TransacUon
ln

(b) Delails of Financlal Assets sold to Securltlsation / Reconstructlon
Company ior Asset Reconstruction

ln

+ {
+



As at 31 March 2018Particulars As at 3{ March 2019

No. of acoounts NIL NIL

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned NIL NlL

N!L NIL

NIL NIL
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transfened in

earlier years

NIL(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book Value NIL

As at 3t March 2019 As at 3{ March 2018Partlcularc

(a) No. of accounts ourchased durino Nil Nir
Nir

1 (b) Asoreoate outstiandino NiI
(a) Of these, number of a@ounts Nil Nil

2 (b) Aooreoate outstandino Nit Nit

As at 3l March 2018Particulars As at 31 March 2019

1. No. of accounts sold Nit Nir

2. Aooreoate outstandino Nit Nit

Nil Nit3. Aooreoate consideration received

ln

(d) Detalls of non-performlng flnanclal aesets purchased / sold

(f) Detalls of non-pertormlng flnanclal assets purchased:
ln

Oetalls of Non-pertormlng Flnanclal Assefs sold.'
in Rs.

Assets Llabllity llanagement (Maturlty Pailem of Certaln ltems of Assets LlabiliUes)

d ln

Over 10 years Total1 day to
15 days

16 to 30-31
days

Over
one

month
to2

months

Over 2
months
upto 3
months

Over 3
months

to6
months

Over 6
months

to 1 year

Over 1

year to 3
years

Over 3 to
5 years

Over 5
to7

years
Over 7 to 10 years

Liabllltles
Deoosits

42.52 11.62 1.50 254.60Borrowings from
bankVFl 2.53 1.47 3.95 11.61 12.50 41.45 125.44

Market
Bonowings

Foreign Curency
Liabilities

Assets

37.14 50.34 264.70

Advances (Net ol
Security
Deposits) 6.49 7.24 3.67 3.61 11.77 24.79 65.32 30.2'.|/ 24.12
lnvestrnents

Foreign Cunencl
Assets

(t ln Crores)As at 31d March 2018:

Total
1

1

today
5 days

16 to 30-31
days

Over
one

month
to2

months

Over 2
months
upto 3
months

Over 3
months
to6
months

Over 6
months
to 1 year

Over 1

year to 3
years

Over 3 to
5 years

5
7

Over
to
years

Over 7 to 10 years Over 10 years

Deoosits

167.76
Borowings from
bankVFl 3.51 1.22 1.O2 5.82 8.89 32.58 79.91 26.10 5.23 3.48

Market
Borrowings

Foreign Cunency
Liabilities



Assets

21.99 33.67 35.62 188.23
Advances (Net of
Security
Deposits)

4.28 0.12 2.84 2.77 8.0't 15.15 43.44 20.34

lnvestment

Foreign Cunency
Assets

As at 3l March 2019 As at 3{ March 2018
a)

Residential Mortgages -
Lending tully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the bonower or
that is rented; (lndividual housing loans up to Rs.15
lakh may be shown separately)
-lndividual Housing Loan up to Rs. 15 Lakh
-lndividual Housino Loan more than Rs. 15 Lakh

137.1',[
14.26

115.05
9.84

(i)

12.81
3.96
il.47

9.81
2.06

&t.33

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commerddreal
estates (office buildings, retiail spa@, mu ltipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse spa@, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construclion, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB)
Limits;

-lndividual Commercial Loan up to Rs. 15 Lakh
-lndividual Commercial Loan more than Rs. 15 Lakh
-Builders

lnvestments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS)
and other securitized exposures -(iiD

NilResidential NiI

commercial Real Estate Nit NitB
b)

NitFuld based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

33.76

Cateqory As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Nit Nil
(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;.

Nit Nit

(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including lPOs /

ESOPs), convertible 
"n;];##*i[debentures, 

and units of equity-

Nit Nil
(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds

or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible

debentures or units of equrty oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible

debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover
the advances;,

Nit Nit

(v) secured and unsecured advanceg to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

Nit Nit

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds
/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promotefs

contrib'ution to the equity of nerrr companies in anticipation of raising
resour@s;

Nit Nir

Nit Nit
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered) Ni! Nit

Total Exoosure to Caoital tlarket Nit Nit

Exposure

Exposure to Rea! Estate Sector:
ln

Exposure to Capita! Market

Detalls of financlng of parent company products

Not

+

A

m
a,

+
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As at 3t March 2018Break up of 'Provision" ."1""rr,il:?n"TiTs' charged as Expenditure As at 3l March 2019

1. Provisions for deoreciation on lnvestment N!L NIL

2. Provision made towards lncome tax 1.34 0.94
0.063. Provision torards NPA

4. Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser
loan, CRE, CRE-RH, etc.)

0.01i) lndividualHousino o.o2
o.10 0.11ii) Commercial Real Estate (CRE)

0.01iii) Commercial Real Estiate - Residential Housing (GRE-RH)

Provision for Employee Benefits 0.15 0.12

As at 3l March 2018Particularc Ae at 3l ilarch 2019

65.23 43.47Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest Bono,vers
Percentiage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest bonon ers to Total 24.49o/o 2',t.62%

As at 3l March 2018Particulars As at 3l March 2019

Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest Bonowers 68.48 43.47

Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest bonowers to Total' Advances ofthe HFC
24.910/o 21.560/o

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018Particulare

Detalls of Slngle Borrower Llmit (SGL) / Group Borrower Llmlt (GBL) exceeded by the HFC

Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year.

Unsecured Advances
i. Refer Note no.7 to the financial statements.
ii. The Company has not granted any advances against intangible securities.

Disclosure of Penaltles lmposed by NHB and other regulators

During the financial year 2018-19 no penalties have been imposed by NHB and other regulators.

l. Ratlng asslgned by Credlt Rating Agencles and mlgraUon of rating dudng the year,

lndla

ICRA:

CRISIL:

CARE:

!X Provlslons and Gontlngencles
ln

Praw Dowi from Reserves

has not been any draw dorn from reserves during FY 18-19

Concentratlon of Publlc Deposlts, Advances, Exposures and NPAg

Xl.l Concentratlon of Publlc Deposlts (for Publlc Deposlt taklng / holdlng HFCs)

Applicable

Concentration of Loans & Advances
In

.ll! Goncentratlon of all Exposure (includlng off-balance sheet exposure)
ln

ln
Concentration of NPAs

accou 0.

AT

t mo
*

l=---AmotmT l
I Rs. 500.00 Crore 

I



Sector
Percentage of NPA8 to
TotalAdvances In that

sector

sl.
No.

A. Houslnq Loans:
1 lndividuals 0.280/o

2 Builders/Proiect Loans 1.22o/o

0.007o3 Corporates
0.00%4 Others (speciff)

B. Non-Houslng Loans:

I lndividuals 0.09%

0.00%2 Builders/Project Loans

3 Corporates 0.00.%

0.00%4 Others (speciff)

As at 3t March 2018As at 3l March 2019Partlculars

0.30% 0.28o/o(l) Net NPAs to NetAdvances (%)
(lD Movement of NPAs (Gross)

0.74 0.72a) Opening balance
1.51 0.96b) Additions durino the vear

0.94c) Reductions during the year 1.27
o.740.98d) Closino balance

(llD Movement 6f Net NPAs
0.600.56a) ODenino balance

1.24 0.76b) Additions durino the vear
0.801.00c) Reduclions durins the

Movement of NPAs (excluding provisions on standard

0.19

0

0.200.19b) Additions durins the year
0.19 0.15c) Reductions durino the vear
0.19 0.19d) Closino balance

As at 3l March 2018As at 3l March 2019Particularc
NILNIL

OverseasDomestic
NILNIL

As at 31 i,larch 2019 As at 31 March 2018Partlculars
1 1a) No. of comolaints Dendino at the beginnins of the year

b) No. of complaints received during the year 2 3
3c) No. of comolaints redressed durino the vear 3

o No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 1

Xl.V Sector-wlse NPAs

Movement of NPAs
ln

I Overseas Assets
!n

Off Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are requlred to be consolldated as per accounUng Norms)

Disclosure of Complalnts

Category wlse Provlelon for Standard, Sub-standard and Doubtful Assets as per NHB Norms

Gontlnoent Provlslon aoainst Standard Aesete

As at 31st March
2019

Ruoees

As at 3lst March
2018

Ruoees

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made
Total Provision for Standard Assets

1,856,717,674
4.641.794

'1,242,982,327
4.424.112

Non
168,191,808

1 .681.918
118,700,678

1,187.007

434,937,225
3.262.029

487,248,179
3.654.361

209,380,890
2.093.809

154,532,141
1.545.321

fi.679.550 10.810.801



/

Provlsion for Sub Standard Assets

A9 at 31st March
2019

Ruoees

As at 31st March
2018

Ruoees

4,305,935
814.701

5,881,807
1.470.452

Non Housino
150,372

28.451
17,163
4.291

5,330,882
1.008.626
1.851.778 1.474.743

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made
Total Provlslon for Sub Standard Assets

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

Provlsion for Doubtful Assets

As at 31st March
2019

Ruoees

As at 31st March
2018

Ruoees

Total Outstanding Amount
Provision Made

1,508,143
377.036
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Form No. MGT-1l

Proxy form
lPurcuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies A4 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

04anagement and Administration) Rules, 2014J

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:
E-mail Id: Folio No. / Client Id: DP ID:

I / We being the member of $AF Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited, holding 

-

shares, hereby appoint

1. Name: Address:

E-mail Id:
2. Name:

or failing him;

E-mail Id: Signature: _ or failing him;

as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 12th Annual

General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, June 19, 2019 at 5th

Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009 of the

Company at 10:00 A.M, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are

indicated below:

Optional"
Against Abstain

Signature
Address:

Signed this day of

Signature of Shareholder:

20L9. Affix

Revenue

Stamp

S.Ap Rural Housing & l\'lorlgagc !'inancc l,imitctl
Annrral ltcporl 20 I 8-2019

Sr. I{o. Brief details of the Resolutions For

1 Adoption of the Audited Financial Statement and Reports of the

Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon for the year ended

March 31,2019.
2 To declare dividend on equity and preference shares.

3 Appointment of Mrs, Darshana Pandya, (DIN 07610402), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-

appoinbnent.
4 Ratification of Appointment of M/s. Rajpara Associates, (FRN

113428W) as Auditors and fixing their remuneration.

Signature of Proxy holder(s):



-*Xo"J \rRll{trl -a

\fl/
I

Noter

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
3, *For the Resolutions, and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 12th Annual General Meeting.

It is optional to put a "V" in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the

box. If you leave the "For", Ygainst" or "Abstain" column blank against any or all the

resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she thinks appropriate.

S"{p Rural Ilousing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Annual Report 201&2019



w
Regd, Folio /DP ID & Client ID
Name and Address of the Shareholde(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

No. of Shares

ATTENDANCE SLIP - 12th AGM

(To be handed over at the entrance of Meeting Hall)

I certiry that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the

Company.

I hereby record my presence at the TWELFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at
Wednesday, 19h Day of June, 2019 at the 5th Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel,

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009 of the Company at 10:00 A.M.

Note: Please flll in this attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE HALL.

Shareholders attending the meeting are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report
with them.

$"4! Rural llousing & lVtortgagc Pinancc l,inritcrl
A nnrral Rcport 2018-2019

Full name of the Member/Proxy attending the
Meeting

Member's/Proxy's Signature


